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A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subdivision to subsection 2 of section 12-60-24, and a 
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background checks and prohibiting felons from attaining membership on a school board. 

 
 

Minutes:                                                 5 Attachments 

 
 
Chair Larson opens the hearing on SB 2230. 
 
Nicole Poolman, District 7 Senator, testifies in favor of the bill (see attachment #1). 

 
(3:17) Jim Silrum, Deputy Secretary of State 
Deputy Silrum: 15.1-09-08 says that the deadline for filing for candidates is the 64th day 
before an election. When would this background check need to be done, prior to the filing or 
after? 
Senator Poolman: It is certainly something we discussed and maybe it needs to be reflected 
in the bill. The intent is that they would have to have that prior to filing because they wouldn’t 
be able to appear on the ballot if they didn’t pass that background check. 
 
(4:38) Scott Davis, Executive Director of ND Indian Affairs Commission, testifies in 
favor (see attachment #2) 
Scott Davis: I would say probably 99% of our school systems in the state are very effective 
with felonies not serving on school boards, but those who have felons on school boards, we 
are seeing day to day with phone calls and numerous emails the behavior of these felons 
and how they govern school systems. It is shocking and it irritates me.  

Two sessions ago former Governor Dalrymple formulated a high property tax bill buy 
down with school funding to that package. In that bill there were formulations for school 
funding and what was not in that was formulation for schools like Turtle Mountain Community, 
where I’m an alma mater from. There’s no mill levies or tax base there, but it’s a public school. 
So we had to create a separate funding mechanism for that school and other tribal schools 
like Minot Air Force Base. When we did that, it came out to be a very fruitful budget for the 
school, and it seemed like a great win. Within that 4 years it’s turned quite the opposite to 
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where I question financials. I’m thankful for the community up there; they launched their own 
audit by petition. These are the things we fight very hard during this time of year to make 
sure everybody has a chance to get a good education and have enough money to serve 
those kids that maybe have challenges at home. Sometimes schools are the safest place 
these kids know. We looked at every law and angle to see what else we can do. Thank god 
for the testimonies here today and the petition that has been going around for that forensic 
audit by statute. Again, focusing heavily on felony charges is what we’re after today. Serving 
our most vulnerable populations in the state is what we do in North Dakota. We need to 
protect them, allow good education and jobs and be safe about it.  
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Senator Poolman said we might want to narrow down the theft 
portion. The embezzlement section of the law has both felonies and misdemeanors in it. 
You’d want to narrow it down to say “the felony portion of the embezzlement section”? 
Director Davis: Yes. We’re not talking about misdemeanors and petty theft. We want to 
focus on the felony part of embezzlement.  
 
(13:48) Nathan Davis, Turtle Mountain Council Representative, testifies in favor (see 
attachment #3) 
Nathan Davis: We are having some serious issues with our current school board. Our school 
board should be held to a higher standard as elected officials. State and Local government 
are held to that same standard. The individuals that sit on the school board oversee our kids, 
our greatest resource. They are our future and without proper education that future goes right 
out the window. We have a letter of support submitted to the Governor’s office with signatures 
from our chairman and all 8 council members in support of what’s happening here today in 
regards to this bill and the audits and suspensions. Me speaking on behalf of this bill is not 
an attack on any person’s past transgressions. It’s just to uphold that higher standard. 

 
(15:35) Lana DeCoteau, Belcourt Superintendent, testifies in favor 
Superintendent DeCoteau: I’m probably the one who has made the most phone calls to 
Scott Davis’ office about things going on in our district. These are our children, this our future. 
When I have a teacher I want to hire in a district, that teacher has to go through local, state 
and federal background. When our board members get elected, there’s no background 
checks. I have 3 sitting board members who are felons, I did have 4, out of a 7-member 
board. Their decisions are not always in the best interest of our students. Their interests are 
for themselves and their friends; they manipulate the agendas to suit themselves and their 
friends. Several times I’ve been in the news because they threaten to suspend me because 
I don’t listen to what they tell me that I should be doing. I’m a very ethical person, and they 
are not. I have a hard time being governed by someone who has spent time in prison, beaten 
people, abuse wives and ingest meth. As Nathan Davis said, our tribal council is in full 
support of this. They also have a resolution that states felons cannot sit on boards. 
 
Senator Myrdal: To your knowledge, will the voters who voted these members in aware of 
these felony charges? 
Superintendent DeCoteau: Yes, some of them. Our community is so poor. I’m saying this 
not out of knowledge but out of hearsay, that they may go up and tell you “I will give you $10 
and drive you to the polls if you vote for me”. I’m assuming from what others have told me 
that this has happened. 
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Senator Bakke: It’s possible to declare an emergency in this bill which means it goes into 
effect immediately rather than having to wait. 
Superintendent DeCoteau: I would appreciate that very much.  
 
(19:57) Kirsten Baesler, Superintendent for NDDPI, testifies in favor 
Superintendent Baesler: At this point in time the budget for the 2017-19 biennium for school 
districts for my department was $2.3B. The suggested appropriation for the Department of 
Public Instruction for this biennium is $2.5B. The large majority of that $2.3B is delivered 
directly to our school districts which is then governed by local school board leaders. In 
addition to being in the Bismarck school system for 24 years as a classroom teacher and as 
an administrator at a local elementary school, I served for 9 years on the Mandan public 
school board. You are all very familiar with the understanding that as a school board member 
you have 4 primary duties: hiring your superintendent, your business manager, setting the 
budget and approving the curriculum. When I first was on the board in Mandan in the early 
2000s, the state covered approximately 40% of the cost to educate a student. My time when 
ended and took this role as the state superintendent, the state is covering approximately 80% 
of the cost to educate a student. A lot of state dollars that are directly delivered to our school 
districts through our office for this position is at the discretion of the local school board. One 
thing I’ve learned and has been reaffirmed and proven, there isn’t a single case of a school 
district improving their students’ achievement without good leadership. That leadership 
begins with the board. You can have a dynamite staff of teachers and a caring community, 
but there isn’t a single case in the nation that has been able to raise their student achievement 
without good leadership. 
 
Chair Larson: I was curious about a fiscal note. Background checks do cost money. Who 
pays for these?  
Superintendent Baesler: That was a concern that I had as well and would ask the committee 
to further explore that. There are times where an employer will pay for the background check 
if it’s a requirement for the job. The department stands ready to do whatever the committee 
determines is necessary for us to do to assist in carrying out your wishes. If the department 
would be responsible for the costs of that, I would ask that we would be provided some 
appropriation for that. However, it is not uncommon for that person who would like to be 
employed by a school district to pay for that background check themselves.  
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Do the per pupil payments go directly to all the Native American 
schools just the same as other public schools? 
Superintendent Baesler: The per pupil payments are delivered directly to our public schools 
that are on the reservations. We have 5 Bureau of Indian Education schools in the state that 
do not receive per pupil payments. 
 
Senator Osland: Are you familiar with the governor’s powers? Have you looked into the 
possibility for him to remove school board members? 
Superintendent Baesler: Yes, the Governor does have the authority in some situations but 
as is the case that is currently going on, it was a petition that was presented to the Governor 
and the Governor has now requested the fiscal audit to be done. I am aware of one other 
situation where the governor had removed an elected sheriff while the investigation was 
ongoing.  
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(26:10) Dr. Amy Kopas, NDCEL Executive Director, in favor (see attachment #4) 
 
(27:35) Craig Lunday, Turtle Mountain member, testifies in favor of the bill 
 
Lunday: I realize that some felons will make better choices after convicted of their felony, 
but to sit on a school board that gives them the access and authority to the hiring and firing, 
the school’s checkbook, creating jobs not needed, giving contracts to friends and family, is 
not fair to our community, faculty and children. We have 3 felons on our school board with 
felonies that consist of embezzlement, violence and drugs. One was sent to the penitentiary 
for embezzlement when he was a tribal councilman a few years ago and shortly after that he 
was convicted of assault with result of serious bodily injury. We shouldn’t have that type of 
person sitting on our school board around children or anyone in the school system. There’s 
another one who is currently awaiting trial for an assault charge that took place in September 
of last year. He was recently charged for terrorizing in Mandan. If convicted, we’ll have 4 
felons that sit on our board. Nothing good can come from that. What kind of message is this 
to our children of all schools? Please pass this bill.  
 

--Testimony in Opposition-- 
 
(31:58) Alexis Baxley, NDSBA Executive Director, testifies in opposition to the bill (see 
attachment #5) 
 
Chair Larson: If felons on school boards are rare, then this law wouldn’t apply to very many 
people. Does the School Board Association resist this minimum standard, that they cannot 
be felons?  
Baxley: Our concerns lie in the fact that we are singling school board members out. School 
board members, if they’re behaving well should not be in the school building during the day. 
The bulk of their work takes place outside of school hours, not in contact with children. 
Superintendent Baesler spoke to the funding aspect. We would argue that cities and counties 
and townships receive state funding as well. It’s troublesome for us that certain convictions 
would prohibit you from running for the school board, but you would still be able to sit on the 
state legislature for example.  
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: there is one specific section that talks about embezzlement that 
deals with both misdemeanors and felonies, but if you said “a felony” under that section, 
would you be comfortable with that? 
Baxley: Certainly it would be more palatable to us. At the end of the day we don’t believe 
that school board members should be singled out to be any different from county 
commissioners, city commissioners and the like.  
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Whether the members are in the school or not, they’re still 
responsible for and have access to these students. Would you object to school board 
members having to go through a background check? 
Baxley: If it were a background check for information purposes, I don’t think we would have 
a problem with that. 
 
Chair Larson closes the hearing on SB 2230. 
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A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subdivision to subsection 2 of section 12-60-24, and a 
new section to chapter 15.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to criminal history 
background checks and prohibiting felons from attaining membership on a school board. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments 

 
Chair Larson calls the committee to order to discuss SB 2230. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: The testimony concentrated on felonies. Line 12 after the first 
comma we could say “a felony crime against a child” then at the end of line 12, say “a felony 
offense under” and change it to “section 12.1-23-07” which is the embezzlement section. We 
would have addressed the concerns that the school board executive director talked about in 
the second page of her testimony and stay consistent with what the sponsors of the bill said 
they wanted which is to concentrate on felonies.  
Chair Larson: I think that what they were looking for is a felony and any crime against a 
child. If it was a crime against a child, that would be a separate one rather than just making 
it a felony. I think they wanted that comma in there. That’s my opinion.  
Senator Luick: If we do that, then we’re trying to piecemeal this back together again. Do we 
just want to look at the felony convictions across the board? 
 
Senator Bakke: I would recommend declaring it an emergency. In their particular case, these 
people are taking over their school and making it quite difficult at this time. 
Senator Osland: We all understand their problem. We’re probably not going to fix it in a bill. 
I’m not sure if the Governor has the power to include or exclude school board members, but 
they have the power to do that with sheriffs. We have a school district with a problem and 
we’re going to attach a situation to make everybody else comply. Most of the population don’t 
carry guns on airplanes but we’re all checked, an inconvenience and expensive too. I’m 
sympathetic, but is this the right correction? 
Chair Larson:  We will bring back amendments and discuss this further. Anyone who wants 
to bring an amendment please do it tomorrow.  
 
Chair Larson ends the discussion on SB 2230. 
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A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subdivision to subsection 2 of section 12-60-24, 
and a new section to chapter 15.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to criminal 
history background checks and prohibiting felons from attaining membership on a school 
board. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments 

 
Chair Larson calls the committee to order to discuss SB 2230.  
 
Senator Myrdal: There is a bill in the House that addresses some of the grievances that may 
occur in this. Though I understand the frustration of the parties that testified, it talked about 
a specific incident. There are very clear roadways and avenues through which you can 
petition to have somebody removed or investigated as a school board member. Secondly I’m 
concerned that we’re taking the power away from the people. As we sit here I don’t think we 
can control who the people are and how educated they are in each of the school districts. 
That is not our job and I wonder if this legislation is too specific to that. 
 
Chair Larson: I received an email from Jim Silrum who said that this doesn’t address a write-
in candidate. He suggested that if we wanted to address that then we would also need to put 
something additional in there. Joe, please explain this. 
 
Joseph Jensen, UND Law Intern, neutral party 
(3:10) Jensen: From what I understand, he’s saying the change in language would make it 
so that you don’t have to go through the background check to get elected, but once you are 
in office you have to pass one to stay in office. Write-in candidates, since they’re not part of 
the actual process, they wouldn’t be subject to this until after the election. So it would keep 
everyone on an even footing.  
 
Senator Myrdal: So you’re elected, then you go through a background check and fail to pass 
it- now what do we do? In this particular case, 3 of the school board members are disqualified 
and the election is over. Now what process do you go through to fill those seats? 
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Senator Bakke: They do have a recourse. They can file a complaint with the Attorney 
General. The school board members are immediately put on suspension. They do the 
investigation and if it’s founded, they are removed by the Governor. There is a process and 
in talking with Senator Marcellais who comes from this district, he said he would check to see 
why they hadn’t. One of the things he thought might be a reason is retaliation, that a lot of 
them are afraid if they take these people through this process and they’re removed, that then 
they’re going to find their property damaged or worse. We have a unique situation here and 
I feel like we’re writing a piece of legislation for one situation because everybody else has 
used the process and it’s been successful. However, I totally understand if you’ve got 3 
people that are felons and 2 others that are about to be all on your school board, you’re going 
to be a little nervous about saying much about it because of the retaliation.  
 
Senator Osland: The House Education Committee is hearing a similar bill. The Governor 
can do all of these things as we know, but they’re passing a law which will allow the Governor 
to take those people out of office and substitute other members to be on the board, then do 
the auditing and stuff like that after the fact. That’s my understanding. 
 
(7:05) Alexis Baxley, School Boards Association 
Baxley: Senator Osland is correct. House Education is currently debating HB 1501. The way 
the process currently works that Senator Bakke spoke to is the constituents would file a 
petition with the Attorney General and the Attorney General has 30 days to complete an 
investigation and make a recommendation to the Governor. If the recommendation is to 
initiate a removal proceeding, the Governor can at that point remove the board member 
during the proceeding. HB 1501 would move the point of suspension or removal up to the 
point where the petition is filed and the investigation begins. It would eliminate keeping that 
suspected board member in office for the potential of 30 days while the investigation is taking 
place. 
 
Senator Luick: Do you think that is a better vehicle than what we have here? 
Baxley: Yes, we support that bill. We believe that protects the district, the board members 
and the students. 
 
Senator Bakke: What is the point of this one? 
Chair Larson: This is just to say if you’re a felon, you cannot serve on a school board. This 
isn’t about removing anyone; this is about their eligibility to begin with. 
Baxley: Yes. There was some trouble in getting the community to use the process that 
existed, so this idea was brought forward. In the meantime, the folks that were looking to use 
the process that already exist realize that by signing the petition, those names aren’t public. 
They were able to gather double the number of signatures they needed to initiate that petition 
process. 
 
Senator Bakke: Have they filed that petition? 
Baxley: Yes, I believe a couple of weeks ago. The process is moving forward. 
 
(9:40) Senator Luick: This bill sidelines any felon no matter what their consequence was 
during that time. I don’t think that’s the way we should look at things. People have the 
opportunity to change. This type of legislation basically sidelines them for the rest of their 
lives on a lot of different things, so I can’t support this. 
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Senator Myrdal: Do Not Pass 
Senator Osland: Seconds 
 
Senator Bakke: I agree, but I’m wondering if we want to attach these amendments in case 
it does pass on the floor and put the bill in its best form. 
Senator Myrdal: For the record, none of us here want a felon who has done gross sexual 
imposition or sever embezzlement or violent crime on a school board nor do I want anyone 
like that on the legislature. But I do concur with Senator Luick that sometimes you make 
mistakes, but you should have the opportunity to be restored. A Do Not Pass does not reflect 
certainly my rejection to those violent felons being on any schoolboard, but I think we should 
let the House go forward with their bill and see what comes from them. 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 1 nay, 0 absent. Motion carries. 
 
Chair Larson: I don’t plan to get up and speak against this, but I don’t see a problem with 
having a minimum standard for a schoolboard member. Nor do I see a problem if some 
jurisdiction has a problem that they don’t feel they can resolve, using a legislative fix. 
Although I agree with your comments, I was not wanting to be a deciding vote, but that was 
the reason for my No Vote on the recommendation.  
 
Senator Myrdal will carry. 
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  1-13 

 
 Chairman Koppelman:  Opened the hearing on SB 2230. 
 
Senator Marcellais:  Introduced the bill. Passed out Senator Poolman testimony. 
(Attachments #1&#2) Went through testimony. 
 
Rep. Paur:  Are there any similar restrictions on elected officials. 
 
Senator Marcellais:  I don’t know.   
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: The only restrict to run for office is that you be an eligible voter 
and live in the area you vote in for thirty days or more. 
 
Rep. Hanson:  We have 178 school districts in ND.  Has the Dept. of Public Instruction 
shall reveal the background checks for all the school board candidates. Has Dept. of Public 
Instruction weighed in on how much capacity it would require to review the background 
checks of all the candidates for 178 school district every year. 
 
Senator Marcellais:  I can’t answer that question.  You would have to ask the Dept. of Public 
Instruction. 
 
Rep. Magrum:  Does the bill just cover felonies against children or any felony? 
 
Senator Marcellais:  It is all felonies. 
 
Rep. Satrom: Does this apply to anyone.  What if someone did something stupid when they 
were 18 and now 48 years old.  Does it apply to anyone who is a felon regardless of those 
kind of situations? 
 
Senator Marcellais:  Mike not on. 
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Chairman K. Koppelman: Could you give us a little background as to where this bill came 
from? 
 
Senator Marcellais: Several months ago I got calls from the local school boards who asked 
me to have a bill like this submitted.  There were concerns that District 7 school board was 
having problems with waste, fraud and abuse by this school board and it affects our children 
and students. It could be happening in other communities and it affects our children and 
students. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: This would be a big change in ND.  There are some states where 
felons lose their right to vote altogether.  In ND we have not done that.  We have said if you 
have paid your debt to society we want you to become a productive member of society again. 
They still have difficulty getting jobs, but the question that is on a lot of legislatures mind in 
respect to this bill is does this work, where we balance this concern without throwing the baby 
out with the bath water? 
  
Senator Marcellais:  I realize we do have felon’s in the state of ND. If they were convicted 
once and start doing this waste, fraud and abuse again something has got to be done. 
  
Chairman K. Koppelman: Have you considered other approaches to that.  Maybe better 
ways to deal with the waste, fraud and abuse as it may come up or stricter consequences for 
people who have been felons and who then repeat. 
 
Senator Marcellais:  Starting April 1 there will be an auditor done by the state auditor asking 
for an audit for any fraud, waste or abuse and that was requested by a petition from my 
constitutions to the governor asking for an audit of these records. The auditor can’t prosecute; 
it has to be the Attorney General to do the investigation for any fraud, waste or abuse. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  Didn’t we pass another bill this session that gives the 
superintendent of public instruction some authority with respect to members of a school 
board? 
 
Senator Marcellais:  Yes.  We are looking at that now in our committee.  
 
Rep. McWilliams:  How does this bill address this problem now. If it doesn’t take effect until 
their name is on the ballot; if this is a big problem, they will not get elected again and this bill 
won’t be needed for the present situation. 
 
Senator Marcellais:  The way we are addressing this; we have an audit going on and there 
may have been some school members picked up.  How do we keep them from running 
again?  Maybe putting an emergency clause on this. There is an election coming up in June. 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  With the elections coming up again potentially they will be out of office 
then in June. 
 
Senator Marcellais:  In June need to put an emergency clause. 
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Chairman K. Koppelman:  Do you not believe the voters would turn those people out if they 
are known to be bad actors? 
 
Senator Marcellais:  There is a way of politicking up there and it is called hauling votes.  We 
have school board members, tribal council members, that have large families and they go to 
the local housing authorities; find some drunk and say hey, would you come and vote for me; 
I will give you a pack of cigarettes.  That is the way they operate on the reservation.    
 
Scott Davis, Executive Director, ND Indian Affairs Commission: (Attachment #3) Went 
over testimony.  Discussed the terrible problems with felons back home. We need some 
intervention here for our tribe.  There is a homeless issue back where we come from back 
home.  At the same time, we are building a $5 million wrestling room.  School boards do not 
run or own the school.  It is a team of administration and superintendents and school boards.  
I worked with the school board association and how they are supposed to govern.  I am all 
for second chances, but when they start stealing from kids then I will stand up for them. I do 
it all with respect.  It is tough enough our children have enough issues back home.  The 
safest institutions we have on our reservations is our schools.  In this case it is not behaving 
as such. We have to govern effectively. Discussed the passage of the bill to fund tribal 
schools and how happy I was when that passed last session.  If I sign my name to the 
registration, and people know I signed it; particularly this school board member, they are 
going to come after me; my job and family.  So no I don’t want to sign it. You have a very 
scared group of people back home and I don’t like that.  We should never have a fear of 
signing something that; somebody is going to see my name and I am going to lose my job 
and it is going to come against my family.  That is what is happing back home.  That is the 
felony behavior I can’t stand.  It is affecting the student body.  Two school board members 
have been arrested during their tenor ship in the last few months. If that happened where 
you came from that would be a front page story.  Nothing happens in this case.  They continue 
the way it is. Discussed many issues on the reservation. We looked at the Class A felony for 
this.  I am not perfect, but I believe in second chances. What you did at 18 or 25 and le’ts go 
through the process of doing that so you can get it off your record so you can be a strong tax 
paying citizen and be on the school board and run for tribal counsel and be a leader.  I have 
been through nine months of this.  We have to govern effectively. 
 
Rep. Paur:  Are we having the AG’s office testify?  Indian law is the most complicated laws 
we have.  If that audit etc. finds misdeeds, is the Attorney General going to prosecute Indians 
on an Indian reservation.  Have you contacted the BIA or local and federal authorities? 
 
Scott Davis:  Yes. We have looked at the laws.  I think it is up to the Attorney General to 
process.  Eights circuit court proved that public schools on the reservation governed and 
funded by the public school is under the jurisdiction of the state.  
 
Rep. Rick Becker:  With regard to $25 million going to the school; it was appropriated six 
years ago. So six years ago the legislature threw $25 million at the school, but the problem 
we are addressing sounds like it has only been in place for nine months.  How do you 
correlate the issues that you are trying to rectify with this bill versus what you indicated in 
your testimony as being one of the significant concerns for fraud, cohesion and waste? 
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Scott Davis: It has been longer than nine months.  It has been years. People decided to 
speak up recently. Throwing money at it; restructuring the government with checks and 
balances and restricting the school board for the association to look at your policies and 
procedures, separations of powers’ focusing on the children and the curriculum and teaching 
language and our culture; it is those things as a school board member you should really be 
looking at.  There is plenty of money there, we just need better government. 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  Are we tackling the right problem with this bill?  Maybe we should be 
looking at the election process versus something that would have broad statewide 
consequences? 
 
Scott David:  That is a good question.  We looked into that with BCI and the FBI when you 
are hauling votes. The FBI said that is voter fraud and we worked closely with the Secretary 
of State on absentee ballots. 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  In your testimony you said there use to be four individuals in this particular 
instance and now there is two.  Is that an example of the process working itself out and we 
are down to two and there is an election coming up? 
 
Scott Davis:  We had an election this summer and one that was on decided not to run. 
People were tired of it and they stepped down. 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  How many school board members serve on a school board? 
 
Scott Davis:  We have nine. I am a huge local control guy. With public money we need to 
look at this money. I think this is turning around since people are getting elected out. I think 
when it is public money we need to look at how it is being spent. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Who administrators the school board election at a public school 
on the reservation? 
 
Scott Davis: They have their local election board like everyone else. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: We hope not to treat anyone differently.  Is this something that 
the problem seems to be unique and isolated to the areas you are speaking of?   
 
Scott Davis:  Yes. I don’t want to single out tribal schools only. I think it happens statewide. 
This could easily happen in your backyard too. If you had two felons on your school board; 
should they really be on the school board?  Would you think twice? 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Chances are if that was public knowledge; chances are those 
people would not be elected again. When you are dealing with illegal voting procedures and 
other issues like that where there are violations of the law already that aren’t being enforced; 
that is the breath of the problem we are trying to address here. 
 
Rep. Magrum:  How many school boards have felon’s serving in the school boards now 
throughout the whole state? 
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Scott Davis:  Two I think; Twin Buttes and Belcourt.   In the bill it does state to prevent this 
you have to do your own background check prior to getting on the ballot.  Then that goes to 
the local election committee.  
 
Rep. Jones:  Part of the election process is they do get a background check.  The Dept. of 
Public Instruction is in charge of the election process.  We are going to look at somebody 
who did something at 18 or 20 years old that really doesn’t have any bearing and they are 
responsible citizen.  They are going to be able to determine that they did indeed pass the 
background check.  Is that what you intended to do? 
 
Scott Davis:  Yes sir. That goes back to the Class A felonies on that and we worked with the 
school board association. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  I wasn’t planning on testifying on this.  My constituent asked me to draft 
a bill similar on this who is not from these two school districts that we are referring to. 
Everyone who interacts with our students; whether it is a teacher, school lunch or a parent 
volunteer has to pass a background test.  The school board member is actually the only 
person who interacts with students or has excess to the school on an ongoing basis who 
does not currently pass a background check. Her request was to require background checks 
for everybody. I like this bill because this bill with Senator Poolman’s amendments.  We are 
not saying every person who has had a felony; we are saying this specific list of particularly 
egregious felonies are the people who we are going to say do not qualify for running for 
school board and having excess to our students. The process includes the person who is 
running for the school board; as part of that process they need to submit the information and 
have the background check run; if they fall under one of those categories, they may not 
assume the position for which they were elected or appointed. I think this is an important step 
in the right direction.  The people we are talking about; they had these felony convictions 
before they were elected and they were elected anyway. This is an issue where people are 
choosing to put them in office anyway.  It is not entirely democratic. 
 
Rep. Hanson:  Would you foresee HB 1256 which relates to sealing records is passed; would 
that enable a person with one of these convictions to be able to successfully be on the ballot 
for schoolboard and take that seat? 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  It is possible.  The bill would allow of sealing criminal records after a 
period of time for misdemeanors after three years and non-violent non-sex felonies after five 
years so a number of these would not qualify for non-violent non-sex offense felonies, but 
any of the others that do would be sealed so if a background check was done after five years 
then those people would not be prohibited from running for the school board. 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  How long would that background check be good for? Also, who pays for 
the background check? 
 
Rep. Roers Jones: I would have to read more carefully, but I believe they would have to 
submit each time they ran for office. The language states the candidate would have to pay 
for their own background check. 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  How long is that term? 
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Rep. Roers Jones:  It appears to be three years. 
 
Rep. Rick Becker:  In regards to your sealing of records the background check which is a 
criminal history record check is as per in Century Code 20-60-24; wouldn’t that fall under the 
one that is more expansive that the state conducts and would still show those records?  
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  I believe there is a list of institutions that qualify for the more expansive 
background check.  I can verify that information. There is a list of institutions that qualify for 
the more expansive background check.  School boards probably would not be included in 
that list for the expanded background check but I can verify that information. 
 
Marchetta Bercler, Rep. Turtle Mountain Community High School Student Council: 
(Attachment 4) Read testimony. 
 
Joe Kolosky, Deputy Director, Office of School Approval & Opportunity, DPI: 
(Attachment #5) Read testimony. 
 
Rep. Rick Becker:  We are looking at two things; the children and sex offenses. 
Why not the school board members?   At what point are we concerned about school board 
members interacting with kids.  Are you aware of issues where school board members have 
had offenses and trying to deal with them? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  School board members are encouraged to get into the schools they are 
supervising.  Every district I have worked in we have invited our school board members there.  
You have to have the right mind set to be a school board president and understand what you 
are doing for those students is you would want priorities to keep them safe, balances budget 
and curriculum which all work together. 
 
Rep. Hanson:  Your testimony is primarily about the financial responsibility of the school 
board members.  Other elected officials also have financial responsibilities including us as 
legislatures, city commissioners, park board members and statewide officials as well.  If this 
is one of the primary arguments; the financial responsibility, why not all elected officials go 
through a background check? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  I do believe we hold our schools at higher standards.  When the work you do 
directly impacts children every day, I think those people working for those children should be 
held at a high level. 
 
Rep. Hanson:  The second concern was contact with children.  We often ask parents to 
volunteer in the schools as well.  Do we provide any check on parent’s background? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  Yes, there are checks in place for parents.  In public schools you cannot be 
by yourself with a student.  If the background checks and felon requirement is at the fore 
front it would eliminate some of those parents, which would elevate some administrative work 
for the school. 
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Chairman K. Koppelman: Your testimony indicates you are the deputy director of the office 
of school approval and opportunity with the Dept. of Public Instruction. What does your office 
do? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  We do everything.  I deal with current school law; technical assistance to the 
field and parents; I am with the complaint department, home education; we work with teacher 
effectiveness; and we also have a federal grant with the twenty first learning center program.  
The school approval processes is every year the schools must submit an annual compliance 
report and with that report the superintendents are saying they are meeting the rules of the 
century code. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: If you are the deputy director of that office; who is the director? 
 
Joe Kolosky: Gail Shower is the Director. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: I understand the movement toward background checks with 
people are going to be working with children.  If someone been convicted of a felony is there 
a lifetime ban against them ever becoming a teacher or ever working in a school?  
 
Joe Kolosky:  To get your teachers license you have to have a background check. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Does that vary from school district to school district or do we have 
a statewide standard on? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  I would have to get back to you. 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  If that is a case by case scenario this law would mean it is not handled 
as a case by case scenario. Of all the background checks been done, have we been 
successful in keeping those people out of schools? If so at what rates.  We are spending a 
lot of money and time doing this? 
 
Joe Kolosky:  When we run a background check we receive the results; we contact the 
school and it is up to them what they do with that information. I can look up what is a hirable 
felony.  
 
Recessed. 
 
Robin Poitra:  Senior at Turtle Mountain High School: (Attachment #6) Read testimony. 
 
Rep. Rick Becker:  Did the people in the community as they board members were 
campaigning and going to be elected that these board members had felonies or did the 
knowledge of the felonies come up after they were elected?  Do you know? 
 
Robin Poitra:  I think they knew before. 
 
Jeryn Marcellais, Junior at Turtle Mountain Community High School in Belcourt; 
(Attachment #7) Read testimony.   
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Tucker Bercier, Turtle Mountain High School Student Council: (Attachment #8) Read 
testimony. 

Erin Keplin, Student Counsel Senior Class Vice President: (Attachment #9) 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Is it primarily mismanagement of money that you heard about; 
what else? 

Erin Keplin: It is mismanagement of money but it is also other things like being disrespectful; 
not doing for our students. It is just because they are doing stuff for themselves. 

Nevaeh David, Senior and Student Council Vice President of Turtle Mountain 
Community High School of Belcourt: Student: (Attachment #10) 

Aiyana Jollie-Trottier, Student Council President, Turtle Mountain Community High 
School: (Attachment #11) (stopped 1:23:43) 

Vice Chairman Karls:  I want to compliment your teacher?  Whoever helped you with your 
testimony.  It is very well done.  Did you give similar testimony on the Senate side and did 
you feel any retaliation back home? 

Aiyana Jollie-Trottier:   We did not speak in the Senate side. We were just asked to speak 
on the House side. Yes, we did have retaliation from the board members and we are a little 
nervous but the adults were not willing to set up so we decided we had to take the action. 

Rep. Paur:  That was the Senate’s loss. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: It does take courage and I want to commend you. This is one 
state that does allow everyone to speak. Thank you so much for being here today and having 
the courage to speak up. 

Ella Davis, Parent, Community and tribal member:  I work as a disabilities advocate for 
PA. We started out with a petition because this has been an ongoing issue for a few years.  
I don’t work for the school so I didn’t have a fear to step forward because I kept getting 
approached by so many people expressing low morale and concerns about voter fraud; 
people voting that weren’t a part of that district; hauling votes, paying people to go and vote. 
Explained how that hauling votes worked and the voter fraud happening. We had three or 
four felons on the school board.   I did the research and we had on that had felonious assault 
charge on him in 1996, which was reduced to a misdemeanor b simple assault.  Went into 
detail on the problems on the reservation and the meetings in the school board. (1:29:00) 
Discussed the tribal members and how they are now having more family members on a tract 
of land and then they are operating as a syndicate. I have spoken to people who have come 
from out of state and came to some of our rural school district and expressed frustration with 
the alliances that are made among school members in rural school districts.  I don’t know if 
they were felons or not. I urge you to support this bill. 

Rep. Satrom:  The more I listen to this the more concerned I am. I don’t know if there is 
anything we can do? 
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Chairman K. Koppelman: We are in a public meeting and anything said here is public.  That 
is one of the good things about having a sunshine laws in our state. When things are sensitive 
issues it does create fear for people to come forward. 

Ella Davis:  I have been harassed by these same school board members.   

Rep. Jones:  The things that concerns me is you are asking for It is an unusual situation to 
think about limiting who can be candidates for the school board. I know people who have 
done things bad as youth and now are teaching other youth and effective because of their 
past experiences. I can see the situation that you are facing.  I am hoping we can give the 
superintendent some leeway to deal with this. 

Ella Davis:  I understanding giving someone a second chance. These are public office 
positions and this is specific to school board positions.  The students came here today, but 
they don’t get to vote.  If we are setting standards for students, staff and administration we 
need to be setting standards for these elected positions specific to school board.  Regardless 
of whatever the felon rates are; I think they deserve a second chance to turn their life around.  
I think we need to value our children first.  

Chairman K. Koppelman: Do you think only convicted felons are part of the problem you 
are describing? 

Ella Davis:  Yes there are other issues with alliances and things like that. I have heard from 
parents from other school districts who have a problem with the alliances made among school 
board members and how they feel there is no recourse. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: I think everyone understands there are serious problems that 
need solutions.  I am hearing about a lot of illegal activity. Voter fraud, abuse of power and 
financial fraud. Is it an enforcement issue in regard to some of those violations maybe that 
would be a more effective way to do this versus just saying no felon that has had it on their 
record can run for school board in ND? 

Ella Davis:  Who enforces anything over the school boards? 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Are you familiar with the other bill that gives the Superintendent 
of Public Instruction some authority to do some of those things? 

Rep. Buffalo:  I understand from the testimonies provided that the school district; the state 
has jurisdiction. What is the stance of the tribal government on this? A lot of our IRA tribes 
are a microcosm of the federal government and all of these systemic issues are in place from 
years and years of historical trauma and these systems are very much alive and well today 
within the exterior boundaries of our Indian reservations. It is dangerous on the future of law 
makers trying to introduce legislation that will get rid of Indian reservations.  

Ella Davis:  Our tribal council wrote letters of support for the audit.  We need to keep in mind 
this is a school district issue.  Even though it is located within the reservation, it is a school 
district issue so the state has jurisdiction and is responsible for addressing this issue, not the 
tribe 
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Rep. Rick Becker:  How do you respond to the following statement? The school board has 
nine members and two are currently felon’s.  Those two by themselves have no power by 
themselves have no power whatsoever.  They would require another three to be working in 
concert with them to affect any power what so ever so therefore; if this bill were to take effect, 
that are part of the problem and the families that are so powerful and are hauling votes can 
now haul votes for someone who doesn’t have a felony and you have the bill that is now 
passed and you haven’t addressed any of the underlining concerns? 

Ella Davis:  We have all thought about that.  Board members do make alliances.  There has 
been no accountability up to this point.  Now we are doing an audit and if this legislation 
passes with both of these bills it is sending a clear message, the state legislature and the 
state of ND is concerned about this.  If there is more fraud and racketeering and laundering 
they are going to take a look at it and there might be more future legislation.  

Chairman K. Koppelman: What we are seeing develop this legislative session not only 
through this bill, but the others that have been referenced in the legislature is taking a look 
at this and recognizing there is an issue that needs to be dealt with. Wouldn’t it be more 
effective to have swift consequences for someone who begins act inappropriately who is a 
school board member. What the bill does it you are saying anybody who has ever committed 
a felony can’t run for the school board.  You might have people who committed a felony 20 
years ago who have turned their life around but you are barring it not only on the reservation, 
but anywhere in the state for ever serving on a school board versus someone who might 
never have committed a felony that would be doing some of the same things you are 
objecting to.  

Ella Davis:  Think about the message you are sending right now.  Went over the problems 
this action is sending to other people right now. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Maybe zero tolerance for the school board members.  Same 
facts.  Rather than looking at their past; instead saying zero tolerance if you do; then you 
might lose your office if you are elected to the school board. 

Ella Davis: Look at our school board members right now.  You are talking about overhauling 
the justice system and that is an entirely different system.  

Chairman K. Koppelman: So this wouldn’t solve that at all. 

Ella Davis:  I don’t know if it would or not.  That would have to be an entirely different issue 
and an entirely different debate. 

Daniel Beam, Student Counsel Sponsor:  I think this is about them; the children. Regarding 
your last point, I don’t think it is an either or. The concerns you raised are real. I taught here 
about three years. These kids are the future.  Their testimony was all them. What they said 
to me in the meeting was they don’t to see this change; but they want to see the whole system 
that produced this change. If the young people on the student council stay in the community, 
this problem will be solved.  What you guys are doing is pushing the future. 

Rep. McWilliams:  If you have a car that is broken and you find out it is the alternator; do 
you change the alternator or the engine or just trade in the whole car? 
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Daniel Beam:  I would try to see what the problem is and get it fixed; if you didn’t solve the 
problem I would go to the next one and I might just trade the whole thing in. 

Opposition:   

Alexis Baxley, Executive Director, ND School Boards Association: (Attachment #12) 
Went over testimony. (1:56:18) We talked about penalties that are already in code for school 
board members. The first would be a petition for recall. This can happen anytime outside of 
within one of year of that board member’s election. In order to do that a voting person in that 
district would file a petition and it would include the reason for recall and it would require a 
number of signatures equal to 25% of the number of voters in the most recent election. This 
bill is important in relationship with school board funding.  Upon certification of those 
signatures a special election must be held between 95 and 105 days from the date of 
certification. This process is used frequently. Most recently it was used in Richland County, 
Parshall, Barnes County North and most recently in Twin Buttes last fall. The second process 
provides for an investigation by the Attorney General and potential removal by the Governor. 
That petition requires 20% signatures equaling the number of people in the district. We are 
here today in opposition to this bill.  It seems we are creating a solution for issues in one to 
two districts. In the original bill we included a large range of protection in our code not for 
school board members.  School board members should not have excess to students any 
more than any other individual.  They should not be in the building except for a meeting. 
There are penalties already in place. Anyone can report those violations to the Attorney 
General.  Then the Attorney General investigates.  This bill is important to funding.  It is 
absolutely the responsibility of the school board to safeguard taxpayer dollars. Went over the 
page 4 of my testimony. There is no way for a school board member to steal or embezzle 
money without the assistance of the business manager or an administrator. A board could 
certainly allocate dollars to priorities that are not the priorities of the district or not in the best 
interest of the district which sounds like what we are hearing today.  Those decisions have 
to be made in public meetings.  Those minutes and bills are posted publically.  There should 
be an opportunity by the community to have input on those types of expenditures.  There 
should not exist these sort of shady closed door business deals taking place. School board 
members should not have excess to the building any more than any other member of society. 
I worry about proposing a solution that is not effective.  I think this district needs help, but I 
do not want to do something that effects all boards across the state.  

Rep. Bob Paulson:  You mentioned in your testimony there are somethings being talked 
about here today that can’t happen specifically in reference to your fourth page.  These things 
can’t happen by law, but aren’t we talking about people who are not following the law?  

Alexis Baxley:  Yes absolutely.  Rather than creating a code that works for 90% of the law, 
lets punish people who are breaking the law. 

Rep. Bob Paulson:  You talked about dispelling a myth of school board members having 
excess to the children. You talked about training and things of that nature.  Is it not possible 
that school board members are ignoring that training and having excess to students anyway? 
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Alexis Baxley: Absolutely. Let’s talk about what those specific things are and there are so 
many ways in code to get rid of bad board members. There are other options out there that 
are more effective. 

Rep. McWilliams:  In these cases where school board members are not doing what they 
should be doing; is there any disciplinary actions taken or available to the rest of the board 
other than just a recall? 

Alexis Baxley:  Yes but it varies.  Districts include their own policies.   

Rep. Roers Jones:  Whether it is best practices or not; you said they do have excess to 
students.  That was one of my concerns. Who hires the business manager? 

Alexis Baxley:  The school board hires the business manager, but the business manager 
does complete the background check and they are held to a higher standard in century code 
where they are criminally responsible if funds are stolen. It is very rare to see a business 
manager who is in cohorts. 

Rep. Roers Jones:  If don’t have felonies who are in charge of making these decisions, then 
the likelihood of hiring a business manager that would be willing to be in cohorts is greatly 
reduced. 

Alexis Baxley:  I would say it takes 5, 7 or 9 board members to make that hiring decision 
unless you have the same felons on the board it is hard for me to agree with that point. 

Vice Chairman Karls:  When you see some bad actors in your profession, as we have seen 
examples of today; does your organization do any sanctioning.  Is there any kind of 
disciplinary action you can bring or is it totally up to the school children to get a petition going 
to do something? 

Alexis Baxley:  We are not a regulatory agent.  We have no authority to do any sanctioning 
or disciplining.   We make them aware of the penalties out there. We were receiving phone 
calls about this issue in the district.  We do our best to give them options. 

Representative Simons: How many people would it take to call for a recall on Twin Butte’s.  

Alexis Baxley: I would be happy to do that math later for you when I have a reference.  Off 
the top of my head I couldn’t answer that question.  

Rep. McWilliams:  How many school board members are there throughout the state? 

Alexis Baxley:  About 1200. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: You talked about getting calls at this school district.  Has anyone 
filled out a form at the Attorney General’s website to ask for an investigation of criminal 
activity? 

Alexis Baxley: Yes, they obtained the required number of signatures and it was filed 
because most of the concerns were monitory the Attorney General handed that investigation 
over to the State Auditor. The Attorney General would investigate and makes a 
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recommendation to the Governor.  They have 30 or 60 days and upon completion.  The 
governor has the option to temporarily remove the board member upon receiving the petition. 
The they would make a final decision after the hearing on that board member who is allowed 
some due process.   

Chairman K. Koppelman: If the Attorney General has referred this to the auditor’s office 
how will that work? The idea is my understanding of school board operations typically those 
meetings are held in the evenings after hours in a business office.  I don’t see the school 
board members having a lot of access to the kids that the public wouldn’t have.  Apparently 
that is not the case in the district we are talking about. 

Alexis Baxley:  Yes certainly that would be uncommon.    

Chairman K. Koppelman: The school board meetings typically were held after hours.  I don’t 
see the school board members having much excess to the students. 

Alexis Baxley:  Would staff be able to prohibit that?  Yes, you would have to be buzzed in. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: You talked about open meetings violations as being criminal.  My 
understanding is the penalty for breaking open meeting laws is embarrassment.  Typically, 
the AG’s office says yes he broke the open meeting law and don’t do it again.    

Alexis Baxley:  Just because penalties are options in code doesn’t mean we always use 
them. 

Neutral:    

Jim Silrum, Deputy of Secretary of State: I am here to speak to you about the committee 
take a look at the Christmas tree version of the amendment that was proposed so that it is 
readable for you.  This doesn’t change what happens.  It still prevents school board formally 
acquired and convicted felons from serving on school boards.  What it does is makes the 
background check be done upon election; and if they are found to be former felons then they 
would not be allowed to serve and a vacancy statute would come into play there.  The reason 
that is important is because for a lot of school boards the candidates’ names do not actually 
get printed on the ballot because a lot of people get elected to school boards because of 
write in votes.  Therefore, under the existing bill how would you regulate those write in 
candidates who would elected to office? We should do this through the election process so 
they can administer backgrounds where it makes sense; only to those who are going to serve, 
rather than those who may serve. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Are you suggesting that amendment? 

Jim Silrum:  That should be in the proposed amendment. I think it will be more clear to you 
if you can see it in the context of the bill itself. 

Rep. Hanson:  Does the process of registering as a write in candidate apply to school board 
candidates and if so can you describe that process. 
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Jim Silrum:  For school board members no write in certification is necessary for that at all.  
Therefore, if you are a qualified elector in that school district and you receive the most number 
of votes or enough to be elected you are then indeed elected. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: This is the question that came to my mind.  I am concerned about 
the issues that have been mentioned today.  This bill changes that drastically.  As a voter, 
my concern is if we are going to take a look at that; where does that stop.  A lot of states say 
if you are a convicted felon you cannot vote. In our state we have taken a different approach 
and said once you served your time; you are a voter again. In the voting process we have 
said you are good to go.    

Jim Silrum:  Yes I had this many times before.  You folks are the policy makers.  The trend 
across the US is that more states are moving where we are with restoring rights to former 
felons because they have served their time; therefore, their rights are restored.  Recently the 
House of Representative in Washington DC approved an HR 1 which is a 622-page 
comprehension election reform bill that would essentially federalize elections and we don’t 
think it is going to go anywhere because it is likely the Senate will not address that.  In that it 
would make it so all states were like us with regard to the restoration to felons after serving. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: I am very concerned about what is going on in this school district.  
Are you hearing about problems of felon’s in other elected bodies? We do not hear of that.  I 
deeply sympathize with the problems they have in Rolette County.  This may be putting items 
in a tool chest that allows people to work in many different ways.  Do you hear about that? 

Jim Silrum:  No we do not hear of that. I deeply sympathize with the problems that they have 
experienced in the school District #7.   This may be putting items in a tool chest that allows 
people to work in many different ways.  That already exists in law and would exist if this bill 
were to pass. 

Rep. Vetter:  For enforcement for election type of violations; are those things that are 
enforced by the Secretary of State’s office or are they always enforced by the Attorney 
General?   

Jim Silrum:  It isn’t necessarily enforced by the Attorney General’s office.  Sometimes it is 
the more local states attorney or city attorney as the case may be for handling things of that 
nature.  Vote Hauling has any number of definitions.  We need to define what that is.  
Generally, the prosecutorial authority falls to the local jurisdiction.  The Attorney General acts 
in consult to them. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: If the school district is on a reservation; would that be adjudicated 
in the tribal courts or would it be the county state’s attorney? 

Jim Silrum:  For purely tribal school districts they would be handled within tribal court.  The 
one in question today is a state school system so therefore the state has jurisdiction. 

Rep. Paur: Somebody said there is an election in June? 

Senator Marcellais:  Yes that is correct and that is just a June election every three years 
and they rotate the board members. 
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Rep. Paur:  You mentioned an emergency clause on this so if an emergency clause was on 
here it would take effect by that election?   

Chairman K. Koppelman: When do the people elected in that election take office? 

Senator Marcellais:  It is the following meeting in July. That is the reason for those 
amendments. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: The emergency clause would still be important to bar them from 
taking office. 

Rep. Bob Paulson:  Why you think those options haven’t been taken or exercised? 

Senator Marcellais:  I have reported this to the Attorney General in back in April.  I sent 
them an email.   How long do we have to prolong this to get something done? 

Rep. Bob Paulson:  Sounds like both those options for removal require signatures from the 
people to be presented.  If it has been going on for nine months, I am wondering why those 
signatures haven’t been presented to have those school board members removed? 

Senator Marcellais:  These kids were scared to come here today. They thought those felons 
were going to come and testify. They want something done.  We went through the process 
and started the petition, but it all takes time. 

Rep. McWilliams:  Do you have good candidates to run in opposition? 

Senator Marcellais:  One of these felon school board members wanted me to run.  I told 
them I can’t run because I am a state senator.  They are like the mafia. These checks she 
talked about are automatically generated.  The business manager has been out of work for 
three months.  I bet his signature is still on the checks because they are automatically 
computerized.  The president of the board and the business manager’s names are on those 
checks.  The felon is even investigating me because if have storage units back home that I 
have been renting to him for ten years.  Discussed problems with this?  

Rep. Magrum:  So if we do pass this law what is to prevent these people from retaliating 
anyway? 

Senator Marcellais:  At least we got them off the board and they can’t abuse the system 
anymore. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Do you know what the auditor’s review do? 

Scott Davis:  Yes regarding the audit; he was very clear this morning he is relaying on what 
is reported and my talking with every school board member including administration if you 
feel something is wrong here is your time to speak your piece.    

Chairman K. Koppelman: What is your sense now?  Is there going to be fear for people to 
come forward? 
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Scott Davis:  It feels like a mafia setting.  We are talking about hard core felon’s here. We 
have tried every legal means to do this. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: What does retaliation look like? 

Scott Davis:  Lose my job and physical violence.  There are pending investigations now out 
there. Individuals ear chewed off. Chocking your wife. It is ingestion of meth and domestic 
violence. How do you locally control that?   

Chairman K. Koppelman: When you talk about retaliation?  Maybe we need enhanced 
penalties.  Would that be a tribal court issue or state court?  What you are describing would 
be criminal activities. Would that be a tribal court issue?  

Scott Davis:  They are both because of where the nature of the school is located at.  We 
have discussed this with the States Attorney.  This is your jurisdiction because of where the 
school is located.  They respond it is a tribal thing and I don’t want to go there.  I think the 
local States Attorney is moving forward on some of this stuff.  

Chairman K. Koppelman: Thank you all for coming. Thank you for your courage in coming 
forward and we are very proud of you. 

Hearing closed. 

Email: Craig Lunday, Resident (Attachment #13) 
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Committee Clerk:   DeLores D. Shimek 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to criminal history background checks and prohibiting felons from attaining 
membership on a school board.  
 

Minutes:                                                  1 

 
 Chairman Koppelman:  Opened the meeting on SB 2230. (Passed out proposed 
amendment #1) Went over the amendment.  We had concerns about creating a blanket 
standard across the whole state based upon problems what are pretty narrowly confined in 
certain areas.  It might bring up a discussion on why felons serve on mayor, county 
commissioners or whatever. As you read the amendment; Mr. Davis indicated that on the 
reservation they already have requirements for people running for candidates for public office 
and they already have tribal laws that already say people who are convicted felons can’t run 
for those positions.  What we decided to do in this amendment was let’s respect that and 
look at what tribal government does and if we have a school district that is on tribal land; let’s 
have the same restrictions for that school district.  That is what the amendment does.  
 
Motion Made to move the amendment 19.0522.03006 by Rep. Vetter; Seconded by Rep. 
Satrom 
 
Discussion: 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  I stopped by the Office of Elections and I had them pool how many 
elected positons do we have in the state.  When you combine all these offices, it is more than 
4200. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: I visited with the Chief Justice about this.  I spoke on two 
occasions with the Superintend of Public Instruction and she indicated she likes this 
amendment.  If the bill passes in this form she will encourage the Senate to concur with the 
House version of the bill. 
 
Rep. Paur:  This appears to be a hog house and would become the bill. 
 
Rep. Rick Becker:  I support the amendment and bill.  Before I would not have supported 
the bill.  I would have thought the bill would not pass on the floor of the house. 
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Vice Chairman Karls:  How easy is it to change the tribal probation on this or will it happen 
again? 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  Here we are recognizing the tribal sovereignty of the tribe to do 
what they want to do on tribal land.  If a tribe did do that and we will no longer have this 
probation of felons running for office on the reservation; then this bill would not require that 
either.  Again it puts the decision making on the court of the tribe and all provisions of state 
law would apply, but it couldn’t be any less restrictive than what happens on tribal land.    
 
Representative Simons: I support this amendment.  Young people that showed themselves 
here that day the future of that school district looks very bright.  I think this is something that 
will be addressed. When you educate those kind of young people that have the bravery to 
come here and speak under great leadership that is how this is fixed. 
 
Rep. Vetter:  In talking to Mr. Davis he indicated the law came into being by the people on 
the reservation.   
 
Rep. Jones:  I was concerned about the enforcement.  This is going to go back to the tribe 
to enforce.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: I appreciate your kind comments, but I drafted this in the name 
of the committee because you all helped me with it. 
 
Jim Silrum:  The situation in question was a public school that happens to be on private 
land.   
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  Reiterated earlier statement. 
 
Silrum:  I know in this particular school district happens to have the same boundaries as the 
reservation has itself.  That also happens to be a precinct within a particular county. I see it 
is in 15.1 so that would apply to schools.  I had to ask. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: We were working with others and came up with this solution so I 
apologize for not keeping you in the loop. 
 
Voice Vote Carried. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: I know there has been a desire to have the emergency clause on 
the bill so we could do that verbally. 
 
Motion Made to amend the bill to add the emergency clause by Rep. Satrom; Seconded 
by Rep. McWilliams 
 
Discussion: 
 
Voice vote carried. 
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Do Pass Motion as Amended Motion Made by Rep. McWilliams; Seconded by Rep. 
Satrom 
 
Discussion: 
 
Rep. Vetter:  There is nothing in the bill that would be retroactive.   
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: There is nothing in the language of the bill that would be 
retroactive; however, if the emergency clause carries and the bill becomes law quickly, then 
that will make it law at that point, but there is also another bill that deals with the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction’s ability to remove school board members so there may 
be some ability to deal with that at that level. 
 
Rep. Paur:  I would imagine the tribal government could make that retroactive if they wanted 
the probation.  This just gives them the authority. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: It would not apply to office in the past.  
 
Roll Call Vote:   13   Yes    0   No   1   Absent    Carrier:  Chairman K. Koppelman 
 
Closed.   
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19.0522.03006 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
the House Judiciary Committee 

March 18, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2230 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact a new section to chapter 15.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
public school board membership in a school district located on tribal land. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 15.1-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

School board membership - Prohibition. 

If a tribal government has prescribed by tribal law or resolution qualifications for 
eligibility for candidates for public office which are more restrictive than the laws of this 
state, the qualifications of candidates for eligibility for membership of a public school 
board of a school district located on tribal land may not be less restrictive than the 
qualifications for eligibility prescribed by tribal law or resolution for public office. For 
purposes of this section, "tribal land" means that portion of the land within the exterior 
boundaries of an Indian reservation which is located in the state." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0522.03006 
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Adopted by the House Judiciary Committee 

March 20, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2230 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact a new section to chapter 15.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
public school board membership in a school district located on tribal land; and to 
declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 15.1-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

School board membership - Prohibition. 

If a tribal government has prescribed by tribal law or resolution qualifications for 
eligibility for candidates for public office which are more restrictive than the laws of this 
state, the qualifications of candidates for eligibility for membership of a public school 
board of a school district located on tribal land may not be less restrictive than the 
qualifications for eligibility prescribed by tribal law or resolution for public office. For 
purposes of this section, "tribal land" means that portion of the land within the exterior 
boundaries of an Indian reservation which is located in the state. 

SECTION 2. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0522.03007 



Date: 3/20/2019 
Roll C all Vote# 1 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

SB 2230 

House Judiciary Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 19.0522.0300 -------------------
Recommendation: IZ) Adopt Amendment 

Other Actions: 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By _R_e�p_. _V_e_tt _er _______ Seconded By _R_e.._p_. S_at_ro_ m ______ _ 

Representatives 
Chairman Koppelman 
Vice Chairman Karls 
Rep. Becker 
Rep. Terry Jones 
Rep. Magrum 
Rep. McWilliams 
Rep. B. Paulson 
Rep. Paur 
Rep. Roers Jones 
Rep. Satrom 
Rep. Simons 
Rep. Vetter 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) 

Floor Assignment 

Yes No 

No 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
Voice vote carried. 

Representatives Yes No 
Rep. Buffalo 
Rep. Karla Rose Hanson 
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Roll C all Vote # 2 

House Judiciary 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

SB 2230 

D Subcommittee 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: Add Emergency Clause ----�-�-----------------
Recommendation: 1ZJ Adopt Amendment 

Other Actions: 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By _R_e�p_. _S_at_r _om _______ Seconded By Rep. McWilliams 

Representatives 
Chairman Koppelman 
Vice Chairman Karls 
Rep. Becker 
Rep. Terry Jones 
Rep. MaQrum 
Rep. McWilliams 
Rep. B. Paulson 
Rep. Paur 
Rep. Roers Jones 
Rep. Satrom 
Rep. Simons 
Rep. Vetter 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) 

Floor Assignment 

Yes No 

No 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
Voice vote carried. 

Representatives Yes No 
Rep. Buffalo 
Rep. Karla Rose Hanson 
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Roll C all Vote# _3_ 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

SB 2230 

House Judiciary Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ------------------------
Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

� Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations � As Amended 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions: D Reconsider 

Motion Made By Rep. McWilliams 

Representatives 
Chairman Koppelman 
Vice Chairman Karls 
Rep. Becker 
Rep. Terry Jones 
Rep. Magrum 
Rep. McWilliams 
Rep. B. Paulson 
Rep. Paur 
Rep. Roers Jones 
Rep. Satrom 
Rep. Simons 
Rep. Vetter 

Total 13 

Yes 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

X 
X 
X 
-----
X 
X 
X 

D 

Seconded By _R_e�p_. _S_a_tr_o_m _____ _ 

No Representatives 
Rep. Buffalo 
Rep. Karla Rose Hanson 

No 0 

Yes No 
X 
X 

(Yes) ------------ ----------------
Absent 1 --------------------------------
Floor Assignment Rep. Koppelman 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 21, 2019 7:59AM 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_50_001 
Carrier: K. Koppelman 

Insert LC: 19.0522.03007 Title: 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2230: Judiciary Committee (Rep. K. Koppelman, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2230 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact a new section to chapter 15.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
public school board membership in a school district located on tribal land; and to 
declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 15.1-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

School board membership - Prohibition. 

If a tribal government has prescribed by tribal law or resolution qualifications 
for eligibility for candidates for public office which are more restrictive than the laws 
of this state, the qualifications of candidates for eligibility for membership of a public 
school board of a school district located on tribal land may not be less restrictive than 
the qualifications for eligibility prescribed by tribal law or resolution for public office. 
For purposes of this section, "tribal land" means that portion of the land within the 
exterior boundaries of an Indian reservation which is located in the state. 

SECTION 2. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Nicole Poolman 

Testimony on SB 2230 

Judiciary Committee 

January 21, 2019 

Good morning, Chair Larson and members of the Judiciary committee, my name is 
Nicole Poolman, state senator from District 7 representing Bismarck and Lincoln. I am 
here today to introduce SB 2230, a bill to prevent felons from serving on school boards. 

There are two reasons why I ask you to consider this legislation: 

First and foremost, everyone who works for the school district must submit to a 
background check, and school board members are routinely in schools and classrooms 
with unlimited access to our students. They should be required to meet the same 
standards the rest of the staff must meet in order to keep children safe. 

Second, with the State of North Dakota now paying 75% of the cost of public education, 
we - as stewards of taxpayer dollars - have an obligation to ensure these taxpayer funds 

- are not in jeopardy. School boards are different from city or county commissions because 
they are directly responsible for the allocation of state tax dollars. 

-

You will hear today about adults who are not acting in the best interest of the children 
they have been elected to serve. I hope you will listen carefully to the stories of egregious 
behavior because this is one of those moments when truth is stranger than fiction. 

I also want you to listen carefully to whether people are here advocating for the best 
interests of adults, or the best interests of students. I expect you'll hear from some folks 
who will be advocating for adults rather than children and taxpayers. 

I do want to draw your attention to one portion of the bill. The section we had intended to 
refer to embezzlement actually refers to the entire chapter on theft, so no matter what you 
decide on this issue, you'll most likely want to narrow that reference down to the large­
scale theft we intended to include. 

Thank you for time and attention to what has become a very serious issue. 
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Testimony of Executive Director Scott Davis, North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission 

Hearing in Support of SB 2230 - Relating to criminal history background checks and prohibiting 
felons from attaining membership on a school board 

Senate Judiciary Committee 
Madam Chair, Senator Diane Larson 

January 21, 2019 

Madam Chair Diane Larson and fellow members of the Committee, 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify today. My name is Scott Davis and I am the 

Executive Director of North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission. In this role, I serve as a liaison 

between the leadership, people, and governments of North Dakota's State and Tribal 

governments. In this capacity, my role is to address issues ranging from education, economic 

development, law enforcement, social services, transportation, and healthcare issues, among a 

• long list of various other issues. 

• 

I come here before you all today in support of SB 2230, and to implore this honorable 

Committee to give this Bill a do pass, as it relates to the protection of our most vulnerable 

population--our youth--and those who effectively govern over precious public dollars used to 

support the education of our students. I want to thank Senator Poelman for all of her efforts, 

her time and energy, and her careful listening and important dialogues as this Bill's Lead 

Sponsor-along her Co-Sponsors. 

As it stands in North Dakota Century Code presently, felons are not prohibited from 

serving on North Dakota Public School District School Board. After many conversations with 

those in and around the education field, many of us were shocked by this revelation that 

\ 
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someone with a history of fiscal mismanagement or serious conduct issues with minors would 

be allowed to expend public dollars targeted to support young people. 

It is our hope with the intent of SB 2230 to narrowly define felony charges that would 

preclude one from serving on a Public School Board. We are open to and support amendments 

that would more narrowly exclude individuals who have been convicted of felony charges 

related to crimes against children, such as gross sexual imposition, continuous sexual abuse of a 

child, human trafficking of someone under the age of 18, treason, felonious restraints and other 

felonies related to domestic violence, perjury, luring of a child to engage in sexual conduct, and 

felony theft offenses, embezzlement, financial crimes related to how one, effectively, while 

handling the State of North Dakota's monies for public education, can serve in a high and 

respectful capacity. 

I support SB 2230. Our children deserve School Boards who are accountable, have been 

held to the highest ethical standards and have distinguished themselves as leaders of our most 

vulnerable and valuable population, our children. 

This concludes my testimony. Thank you, Madam Chair and members of the Committee. I will 

stand for any further questions . 



• 

• 

• 

it- 3 
5 r? 2. "2-30 

Senate Judiciary Committee 

State Capitol 

600 East Boulevard 

Bismarck ND, 5805-0360 

RE: Senate Bill 2230 

66th Assembly (2019) 

Dear Chairman and Committee members, 

I /11.P J'A,jl J 

The Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa Indians support Senate Bill 2230 and have drafted this 
letter for future reference of support. Members of a school board are elected officials and should 
be held to a higher standard. These individuals oversee our greatest resource, our children. This 
bill should not be seen as an attack against any individual, instead it should be seen as a 
safeguard to protect our children. The elected officials that make decisions that will affect the 
education of future generations, should be held to that higher standard. 

Sincerely, 

Nathan A. Davis 

Council Representative 

Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa Indians 
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Madam Chair and Bill Sponsors.I want to thank you for spear heading change in policy as to who can 
serve on school boards and also thank you for moving forward with an audit of the school/board. The 
results of such an audit should used as an administrative tool. 

It is so very important that our elected school board members are able to pass a back ground check. This 
back ground check should be completed before an individual is allowed to sign up to run for office. 

It makes no sense that all school personnel must pass a back ground check, but our school board (our 
leader ship) is made up of felons and in some cases have multiple felonies. It makes no sense when 
people with teacher credentials, masters degrees, doctors degrees, and other school professionals have 
to ask a felon for a job. What message does this send to our students, our community and the State of 
North Dakota. 

The following is just a short list of what our school has to put up with when felons are in charge and no 
one wants to say anything for fear of their jobs 

1. Employees and students feel ashamed of our school board because of the felons serving. They feel 
disgusted because these felons go on weekend retreats with school funds and there is no funding for dual 
credit students and other school activities. 
2 The local education community and community at large are embarrassed and discouraged when the 
School board over rules the Administration in order to hire unqualified relatives and friends, and when 
they see nothing wrong with harassing school personnel. 
3 Ethics in our education system in some cases are laid back due to felons in leadership. There is no 
longer such a thing as write or wrong as long as there are no consequences. 
4 Its ok to buy fuel to heat the school from only one vendor instead of taking bids, not good, another spin 
off of felons in charge .. 
5 School board using school credit cards, not only for themselves and school business but for their 
friends. Equipment stolen from the school, school board member suspected, but no one dares to say 
anything, again not good. 

6. The Belcourt School Board is elected by a small group of their friends and relatives and not from 
across all four districts of our reservation. They are not a good representation of our local education 
system and leader ship. 

I am recommending your self Scott along with the Governor's Office, use your emergency powers, to 
remove immediately any felon currently serving on the Belcourt School Board. 

Please use this email as testimony for change. Get rid of the felons. Get them off our school board. 

Sincerely 

Emil LaRocque 
For Scholarship Director/now retired . 
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19.0522.03000 

Sixty-sixth 

Legislative Assembly 

Of North Dakota 

Attention: The House Education committee, 
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I am writing a letter in support of Senator Poolmans Bill. It is the first Bill about not having 

felons serve on the school board. I feel that any member running for or serving on the school 

board should have to follow the same hiring process as an employee of the school district. They 

should have to pass a background check. School board members do receive funds for meetings 

and receive payment, thus they should have to pass a background check. 

I am aware of current and past school board members who do have a felony, which deals with 

either embezzlement/ misappropriation of funding. These types of people should not be in 

charge of making any financial decisions for a school system. Along with these felons, there also 

violent felons who cannot pass background checks to work in our school system, but yet they 

serve our school board. These violent felons could include those that have been charged or 

facing charges of assault or domestic abuse. It is very embarrassing seeing a member of our 

school board make news headlines for being caught with drugs and pending domestic abuse 

chargers within a months' time, while still attending school board meetings. This is a bad image 

for our school district and community, setting a bad example for our current, and future 

students. 

Respectfully, 

Jacob Decoteau 
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January 2019 

RE: 2230 Bill - Prohibition of felons on school boards. Introduced by Senators Poolman, 

Marcella is Representatives Monson, Roers Jones 

My name is Craig Lunday and a member of the Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa and 

reside in Rolette County, ND and am requesting your support on Senator Poolman's bill that will 

disallow felons from attaining membership on a school board. I do realize that some felons will 

make better choices after convicted of their felony. But to sit on a school board that gives them 

access and the authority to the hiring and firing, access to the school checkbook, access to 

creating jobs not needed, access to giving contracts such as teaching, management, 

maintenance, construction, drug testing and other contracts to friends and family, that is not 

fair to our community and to our school children and faculty. 

Our Belcourt School District #7 board consists of 7 members and we have 3 of them who 

are convicted felons. The charges affiliated with those who have been on or currently sit on our 

school board are for embezzlement, violence and drugs. 

Current BSD #7 school board member, Doug Delorme first sat in the penitentiary for 

embezzlement when he was a tribal councilman and his 2nd time he was incarcerated in the 

penitentiary was for a violent crime. It was an assault charge that resulted in serious bodily 

injury . 

Another school board member, Jeremy Laducer is currently awaiting trial for an assault 

charge that took place in September 2018 and was recently charged for terrorizing and another 

assault charge that took place in a Mandan hotel at the end of 2018. He was also recently in the 

news for meth ingestion. If convicted, our school board will have 4 felons. Nothing good could 

come from that. What kind of message and example is this for children in all schools? 

And to my knowledge, other current school board members that are convicted felons for 

charges of embezzlement are Bruce Morin and Teri Lafountain. 

Please find it in your hearts to ban together and pass this act that was brought forth by 

Senator Poolman/Senator Marcella is and representatives Monson and Roers Jones to prohibit 

felons from sitting on any school board. I can't thank them enough for introducing this bill 

If passed and if it is possible, can you somehow expedite the process to implement ASAP. 

Again, Thank you 

Sincerely, 

Craig Lunday 
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Testimony in Support of Senate Bill 2230 -

Good Day - I am here representing North Dakota Council of Educational Leaders which 

is the organization that serves our school Superintendents, Principals, CTE Directors, 

Technology Directors, AD's, County Superintendents, Business Officials and truly every 

school leader with the exception of teachers and school board members. - We are here 
testifying in support of SB 2230. 

Our schools charged with and are expected to maintain role model role within our 

communities. We are charged with finding the best teachers and staff possible. We are 

charged with providing for our students a rigorous yet safe environment. One of the 
ways that we do that is through mandatory criminal background checks. One of the 

things we are looking for is to take serious caution before bringing an individual with a 
criminal record into our schools. Our communities would by-in-large find it 
unacceptable to knowingly bring adults who have a felony record in to work with their 

children. 

It seems completely reasonable to those in our profession to expect the same level of 

professionalism and ability to be a role model in act and deed from our school board 
members. This past year, we've had a number of experiences in our state whereby if this 

law was in place, it would've eliminated extraordinary struggles that were experienced. 

This area of code would restrict felons such as sex offenders, and those who have 
committed crimes against children that rise to the level of felony, those who have 
committed subsequent (two or more) convicted domestic violence attacks, as well as 

those who have committed Class A, B, or C Felonies of theft. Because of the lower level 
crimes that may not rise to the level of concern in code 14-07 .1-06 we'd  support this area 

of code to include a Class A or B felony. (Example being a 20-year-old who makes a bad 
decision in their youth to use someone else's ID or "steal" their ID which, if convicted, 

could qualify as a Class C felony). 

If we believe that our schools are a place for the highest level of professional since they 

work with our most precious resource ( our children), then it would seem reasonable to 
expect that the elected officials who are charged with leading our school boards maintain 

that level of professionalism as well. 

We respectfully support a Do Pass Recommendation of SB 2230. 
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Cha i rman Scha ib le  and membe rs of the Senate Education  Com m ittee, my name is Alexis Baxley. 

I am the executive d i rector of the North Da kota School Boa rds Associat ion .  N DSBA rep resents a l l  178 

operat ing North Da kota school d i str icts a nd their boards .  I am here today i n  oppos it ion to SB  2230 .  

The c it izens of North Dakota have two p rocesses ava i la b le  to them to remove s itt ing school 

boa rd members if they a re d i ssat isfied with the ir performance.  The fi rst, a pet it ion for reca l l  i s  p rovided 

for i n  N DCC 44-08-2 1 .  In o rder  to i n it iate a reca l l  e lect ion,  a petit ion with a n umber  of s ignatu res equa l  

to  25 percent of  the  number of  voters i n  the most recent e lect ion m ust be subm itted to  the d i str ict' s 

bus i ness manager. Upon cert ificat ion of the s ignatu res, a n  e l ect ion  must be he ld  between 95 and  105 

days from the date of cert ificat ion .  A number  of commun it ies have used th i s  p rocess i n  recent yea rs -

Rich l and  County, Pa rsha l l ,  Ba rnes County North, a nd p robab ly most i nfamous ly - Twi n  Buttes. It 's a ve ry 

accessi b l e  p rocess. I n  fact, the reca l l  petit ion i n  Twi n  Buttes requ i red on ly 35 s ignatures .  The second 

process p rovides for a n  i nvestigat ion by the attorney genera l  a nd  remova l by the governor .  A l l  i t  

requ i res to i n it iate th i s  p rocess is  a petit ion  s igned by 20 ,  15 o r  25  percent of  the qua l ified e lecto rs of  

the d i strict. We cou ld  even say there is a th i rd option - every regu l a rly  schedu led e lection . 

Which br i ngs me to my next po i nt - how fa r do we want to go i n  p rotect ing voters from 

themse lves? We be l ieve th is  legis lat ion i s  a react ion to some very unfo rtu nate c i rcumsta nces i n  j u st a 

ha ndfu l  of commun it ies .  But these commun it ies have the same too l s  the others have. The b i l l ' s  

p roponents have a rgued that  school boa rd members shou l d  be subject to  these p rov is ions due  to the 

state fu nd ing received by pub l i c  schoo ls .  But c it ies, count ies, and  townsh i ps a l l  rece ive state do l l a rs .  If 

these proh i b it ions a re good for one po l it ica l subd iv is ion,  they shou ld  be good for a l l .  

They' l l  a lso a rgue that boa rd members a re d iffe rent beca use o f  the i r  p roxim ity t o  ch i l d re n, but 

the rea l ity is  that most board members don't come i nto a ny more contact with students - un l ess they 

a re pa rents - than a ny other e lected offic i a l  good . The work of a boa rd does not ta ke p l ace du ri ng 

school hours or  i n  the c lassroom .  



F ina l ly, and  most concerning, is the incred ib le  l i st of offenses inc l uded i n  th i s  b i l l .  I n  ea rly 

d i scussions, it sou nded as  though the b i l l  wou l d  focus on ly on  specific fe lony convict ions .  The resu lt  is 

much d ifferent, however. Let me l i st the n umber of offenses that wou l d  keep  a North  Dakotan from 

run n i ng for the i r  loca l schoo l boa rd if SB 2230 passes: 

1 .  ANY fe lony conviction; 

2. Crimes aga i nst a chi ld as  defined u nder  12 . 1-32-15, a lmost a l l  of wh ich a re fe lonies; 

3. Vio lat ions  of a domestic protectio n  o rder  - a fi rst v io lat ion i s  a class A misdemeanor; 

subsequent violations a re fe lon ies. This can be common, especi a l ly i n  d ivorce cases; and  

here i s  where i t  gets i nteresti ng; 

4. Theft and  re lated offense under  N DCC 12 .1-23, which inc ludes fe lon ies and  c lass A and  B 

m i sdemeanors l ike dup l ication of keys, shopl ifti ng, us ing a fake ID, and  theft of a keg. 

That's right, u s i ng a fake ID .  I cou l d  make a joke here about e l im inat ing 50% of North  Dakotans with the 

fake ID  and theft of a keg a lone, but the fact of the matter is  it' s  rea l ly ha rd to fi nd  board membe rs i n  

some commun it ies. With the passage o f  S B  2230 we w i l l  l im it the pool even further. S B  2230 does not 

p lace a ny time thresho ld  for conviction s  to be app l icab le .  Mean ing, that time you got caught using a 

fake ID  to get i nto a bar i n  col l ege? Forget it. It doesn't matter that you're now a respons ib le  member  of 

society. At 40, SO o r  even 60 years o ld, you're sti l l  proh ib ited from serving on you r  school board . But 

don't worry - you  can sti l l  serve i n  your  state legis lature ! Th i s  legis lat ion i s  a stark contrast to the 

messaging from the Governor's  office a nd other state leaders surround i ng recovery and rei nvention .  I n  

t h e  eyes o f  SB 2230 - once a fe lon,  always a fe lon .  

I am  not  advocat ing for mora l ly questionab le  school boa rd members. But  I do  be l ieve that's a 

cho ice that shou ld  be left up  to the e lectors of the d i strict, and  school boa rd members shou ld  not be 

s i ngled o ut from other e lected officia l s .  Changing the law for one or two commun it ies is not good 

practice, a nd  I be l ieve th i s  b i l l  w i l l  do more damage than good .  I u rge you to give SB 2230 a do not pass, 

and  I wou l d  be happy to a nswer any quest ions .  

Page I 2 

l 
I 



Senator Richard Marce l la is 
District 9 
301 Laite Loop NE 
Belcourt, ND 58316-3877 

R:  701-477-8985 
B: 701-477-8985 
C: 701-278-0632 
F :  701-477-8985 
rmarcel/ais@nd.gov 

NORTH DAKOTA SENATE 

STATE CAPITOL 
600 EAST BOULEVARD 

BISMARCK, ND 58505-0360 

March 1 1 ,  20 1 9 

COMMITTEES:  
Education 

Government and Veterans Affairs 

Good Afternoon Chairman Koppleman and members of the House Judiciary 

Committee. For the record, my name is Richard Marcellais, Senator from District 

9, Rolette County I am here today to support Senate Bill 2230. 

Senate Bill 2230 relating to criminal history background checks and prohibiting 

felons from attaining membership on a school board. 

Mr. Chairman members of the House Judiciary Committee several states require 

the following qualifications: 

a. A School Board candidate must be a registered voter. 

b. A School Board candidate must be a resident of the school district. 

c. A School Board candidate must have been awarded a minimum of a high school 

diploma or a certificate of high school equivalency. 

d. A School Board candidate cannot have been convicted of a felony. 

e. A School Board candidate cannot be a current employee of the district and/or 

be related to a current employee in that district. 

Thank You very much for the opportunity to appear in support of SB 2230 and don 't 

forget our students. If there are any questions, I will try and answer them. 
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Good afternoon, Chair Koppleman and members of the Judiciary committee, my name is 
Nicole Poolman, state senator from District 7 representing Bismarck and Lincoln. I am 
here today to introduce SB 2230, a bill to prevent felons from serving on school boards . 

There are two reasons why I ask you to consider this legislation : 

First and foremost, everyone who works for the school district must submit to a 
background check, and school board members are routinely in schools and classrooms 
with unlimited access to our students . They should be required to meet the same 
standards the rest of the staff must meet in order to keep children safe. 

Second, with the State of North Dakota now paying 75% of the cost of public education, 
we - as stewards of taxpayer dollars - have an obligation to ensure these taxpayer funds 
are not in j eopardy. School boards are different from city or county commissions because 
they are directly responsible for the allocation of state tax dollars . 

You will hear today about adults who are not acting in the best interest of the children or 
the taxpayers they have been elected to serve . I hope you will listen carefully to the 
stories of egregious behavior because this is one of those moments when truth is stranger 
than fiction. 

I have included an amendment because when the bill was initially drafted, it was too 
broad and applied to more crimes than we intended. The amendment limits the crimes 
that would disqualify a candidate . I am so sorry to miss the hearing, but unfortunately, I 
scheduled a subcommittee hearing at the exact same time. Thank you for time and 
attention to what has become a very serious issue . Please feel free to reach out if you 
have any questions . 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2230 

Page 1 ,  line 3, replace "felons" with "individuals who have been convicted of certain felonies" 

Page 1 ,  line 3, after "a" insert "public" 

Page 1 ,  after line 1 0, insert: 

"i" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 2, replace ".i....E." with "for any of the following offenses may not hold office as an 
elected or appointed member of a public school board, including as a write-in 
candidate: 

Page 1 ,  line 1 2, replace ", an" with "� 

� A racketeering" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 3, replace "chapter 1 2. 1 -23, a violation of a protection order under section 
1 4-07 . 1 -06, or an" with "sections 1 2. 1 -06-02 or 1 2. 1 -06-03; 

_g_.,_ Tampering with public records under section 1 2. 1 - 1 1 -05; 

� Murder under section 1 2. 1 - 1 6-01 ;  

e. Assault under section 1 2.1 - 1 7-01 . 1 ;  

L Kidnapping or restraint under sections 1 2. 1 - 1 8-01 or 1 2. 1 - 1 8-02; 

a_ A sex offense under sections 1 2.1 -20-03. 1 ,  1 2. 1 -20-04, 1 2. 1 -20-05, 
1 2. 1 -20-05.1 ,  1 2. 1 -20-07, or 1 2.1 -20- 1 1 ;  

b.:_ Class A felony robbery offenses under section 1 2. 1 -22-01 ;  

1. Class A felony theft offenses under sections 1 2. 1 -23-02, 1 2. 1 -23-03, 
or 1 2. 1 -23-04; 

l. Class A felony sexual performances by children offenses under 
chapter 1 2. 1 -27.2; 

k. Class A felony human trafficking offenses under chapter 1 2. 1 -41 ; 

L. Abuse or neglect of a child under sections 1 4-09-22 or 1 4-09-22. 1 ;  

m. Delivery of drug paraphernalia to a minor under section 1 9-03.4-05; 

n.,_ Class A felony controlled substances offenses under chapter 1 9-03.1 ; 
or 

Page 1 ,  line 1 4, remove ", may not be placed on the" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 5, replace "ballot for, " with ".:. 

Page No. 1 1 9.0522.03002 
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:if , � ·,,,.} f £ Before taking office, an individual" 

3-J) Page 1, line 15, after the second 1 1§.1 1  insert "public" 

Page 1, line 15, remove ". When a candidate files under" 

Page 1, remove line 16 

Page 1, line 17 , remove "vacancy on a school board, the individual" 

Page 1, line 18 , after "check" insert ", paid for by the individual. If the criminal history record 
check determines the individual has pied guilty to or has been convicted of an offense 
under subsection 1, the individual may not assume the position for which the individual 
was elected or appointed, and the position must be filled in accordance with section 
15.1-09-05" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 19.0522.03002 



• 

• 

• 

�3 
s� .z ,;i,..? (} 

.,;;-/f-/'1 

Testimony of Executive Director Scott Davis, North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission 

Hearing in Support of SB 2230 - Relating to criminal history background checks and prohibiting 

felons from attaining membership on a school board 

House Judiciary Committee 

Chairman, Kim Koppelman 

March 11th , 2019 

Chairma n  Koppelman and fellow members of the Committee, 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify today. My name is Scott Davis and I am the 

Executive Director of North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission .  In this role, I serve as a liaison 

between the leadership, people, and governments of North Dakota 's State and Tribal 

governments. In this capacity, my role is to address issues ranging from education, economic 

development, law enforcement, social services, transportation, and healthcare issues, among a 

long list of various other issues. 

I come here before you all today in support of SB 2230, and to implore this honorable 

Com mittee to give this Bill a do pass, as it relates to the protection of our most vulnerable 

population--our youth--and those who effectively govern over precious public dollars used to 

support the education of our students. I want to thank Senator Poolman for all of her efforts, 

her time a nd energy, and her careful listening and important dialogues as this Bill's Lead 

Sponsor-along her Co-Sponsors. 

As it stands in North Dakota Century Code presently, felons are not prohibited from 

serving on  North Dakota Public School District School Board. After many conversations with 

those in a nd around the education field, many of us were shocked by this revelation that 

f. I 
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someone with a h istory of fisca l m ismanagement or ser ious conduct issues with m inors wou ld 

be a l lowed to expend pub l ic do l l a rs ta rgeted to support young peop le .  

We have worked i n  good fa ith with the North Dakota School Board Associat ion of the 

i ntent of SB 2230 to narrowly define fe lony charges that wou ld prec lude one from serving on a 

Pub l i c  School Boa rd . We have worked i n  defi n ing and  narrowly exclude i nd iv idua ls  who have 

been convicted of specific fe lony charges which inc lude the fo l lowing: a felonious crime against 

a chi ld as defined under section 1 2 . 1 -32- 1 5 ;  offenses under sections 1 2 . 1 -06 . 1 -02 to 1 2 . 1 -06. 1 -

03, racketeering ; section 1 2 . 1 - 1 1 -05 fa ls ification; 1 2 . 1 - 1 6-0 1 murder; 1 2 . 1 - 1 7-01 . 1  assault; 

1 2 . 1 - 1 8-0 1 and 1 2 . 1 - 1 8-02 kidnapping ;  sex offenses under section 1 2 . 1 -20-03 . 1  to 1 2 . 1 -20-5 . 1 ,  

1 2 . 1 -20-07, and 1 2 . 1 -20-1 1 ;  section 1 2 . 1 -22-0 1 robbery, Class A offenses on ly, theft under 

• sections 1 2 . 1 -23-02 to 1 2 . 1 -23-04, class a offenses on ly; Class A offenses only under 1 2 . - 1 -

27 . 2  sexual performances by chi ldren ;  Class A offenses only under 1 2 . 1 -41  Uniform Act on 

Prevention of and Remedies for Human Trafficking ;  sections 1 4-09-22 and 1 4-09-22 . 1  child 

abuse; section 1 9 .03 .4-05 un lawful del ivery of drug paraphernal ia to a minor; and Class A 

offenses on ly under 1 9-03 . 1 Uniform Control led Substances Act. We bel ieve outl in ing these 

particular felonious cr imes a re related to how one can effectively govern a Pub l i c  School 

D istr ict, wh i l e  hand l i ng the State of North Dakota's mon ies for pub l ic education, and can serve 

i n  a h igh and  respectfu l capacity. 

I support SB 2230. Our ch i l d ren deserve School Boards who are accountab le, have been 

he ld  to the h ighest eth ica l standards and have d ist i ngu ished themselves as leaders of our most 

• 
vu lne rab le  and  va l uab le popu lat ion, our ch i l d ren .  
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This concludes my testimony. Thank you, Madam Chair and members of the Committee. I will 

stand for any further questions . 
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Representative, Turtle Mountain Commun ity High School Student Counci l 

Monday, March 1 1 ,  201 9 

Good afternoon Chairman Koppelman , Vice Chair Karls ,  and members of the 
North Dakota House Jud ic iary Committee. Hel lo my name is Marchetta Bercier. I am a 
representative of the Turtle Mounta in Commun ity High School Student Counci l speaking 
on behalf of my peers and teachers. As you may know, today's d iscussion will be on 
felons and their  role in our schools. B i l l  2230 should defin itely be voted yes on . Why? 
Because we are having to deal with the backslash of our leaders that we have no say 

• in .  Also any parent who doesn't l ive in  the school d istrict, does not have a say in  the 
elect ion process. 

• 

That is why you see me here today, in  th is room,  facing my fears and being a 
voice for not only my commun ity, but the enti re state. Please put into consideration 
voti ng yes, not on ly because of the Turtle Mounta ins but also for all of the North Dakota 
schools .  Your  decis ion will not only affect my generation but also future generations. 

Everyone knows a community that has thei r own flaws and problems. However 
how many people also know communit ies trying to solve those exact flaws and create 
solut ions to the problems? I hope you put that into consideration towards voting yes on 
th is b i l l  because th is is exactly why I 'm up here on th is pod ium taking a stand .  This is 
my way way of showing you that I 'm  a part of a movement that wants a change with 
solutions,  not d istract ions. 

Thank you so much for taking the t ime and patience towards my statements. It 
truly means a lot to not only myself but for those in North Dakota who are in  the same 
di lemma as us in  Belcourt. 

-�--
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My name i s  Joe Kolosky and I am the Deputy Director of the Offi ce of School Approval & 

Opportunity with the Department of Publ ic Instruction. I am here to speak i n  favor of Senate Bi l l  

2230 which prohibits felons from attaining memberships on school  boards and having school board 

members pass a background check. 

First, I would l ike to speak about the fiscal responsibi lity of school board members . At this 

point in t ime the budget for the 20 1 7- 1 9  biennium for school districts for the department i s  $2 .3  

b i l l ion .  The suggested appropriation for the Department of Public  Instrnction for the upcoming 

biennium is $2 . 5  b i l l ion .  A large majority of the current amount of $2 . 3  bi l l ion is  del ivered direct ly 

to our school d i stricts which i s  then governed by local school board leaders .  

In the early 2000s, the  state covered approximately 40% of the cost to educate a student .  By  

20 1 2  the  state was  covering approximately 80% of the cost to  educate a student .  A l ot of state 

dol l ars are d irectly de l ivered to our school di stricts through our offi ce, and the fi scal deci s ion-

mak ing i s  at the d i scret ion  of the local school board . Thi s fi scal dec is ion making has a s ign i fi cant 

impact on everyone l i ving and working in that d istrict , and these deci s ions  shou ld  be made wi th 

l ogi c and mora l  consci ence. H aving people do not pass a background check , or convi cted felons on 

the board ,  especi a l l y  ones conv i cted of v io lence, embezz lemen t  or gross sexua l  i mpos i t i on ,  may 

i n h i b i t  t h i s  i mportan t  dec i s i on mak ing . 

Page 1 or  2 
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deci s ions .  You are al l  very famil iar with the understanding that as a school board member you have 

four primary dut i es :  1 )  Hiring your superintendent, 2) H i ring your business manager, 3) Sett ing the 

budget , and 4) Approving the curriculum. The decisions that school board members are required to 

make regarding these duties hold a tremendous amount of responsibi l i ty. School board members ' 

high-l evel decis ions directly impact every student, parent ,  employee of the di stiict, and the 

community at large. 

I have worked in  education at all l evels :  Pre-K, elementary school ,  middle school ,  and high 

schoo l .  I also have served as administrator and teacher. Throughout my experience there is one 

thing that I have learned, and I am certain. Research has reaffirmed and proven this as wel l .  What I 

have l earned i s  school districts succeed, and students achieve, with good l eadership . The base of this 

good l eadership begins with the school board . You can have a dynamite staff of teachers and a 

ca1ing communi ty, but there i sn ' t  a single case in the nation where a district has been able to raise 

thei r student achievement without good leadership .  Success,  achievement ,  posi t ive school cul ture, 

and working relationships all start at the top and fi lter down throughout that di strict and schools . 

The board must set this example and l ead with ethi cs and integiity .  

Chainnan Koppelman and Members of the Committee, that concludes my prepared 

testi mony and 1 wi l l  stand for any questi ons you may have . 

Page 2 o f 2  
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Good afternoon Chai rman Koppelman , Vice Chair Karls ,  and members of the North 

Dakota House Jud iciary Committee, I come before you today in support of Bi l l  2230. Boozhoo, 

hello, my name is  Robi n  Po itra. I am a senior at Turtle Mountain H igh  School an a 

senior representative on the student counci l . 

Senate b i l l  2230 is personal to me because my school board actual ly has th ree 

felons serving on it. Th is brings a lot of tens ion i nto my commun ity and school . Parents 

and several community members feel that because of certain members ,  the board 

cannot be trusted with how the money is  being spent. Parents and community members 

are constantly worried about money being spent wrongly and being spent on th ings that 

do not relate to school ideas, and have a feel i ng of that money not going to our  

ch i ld ren's education , my education .  

Our education is  invaluable. We are the futu re leaders of our commun ity; the 

next teachers ,  doctors, pol iticians ,  etc. Not on ly our parents but our fam il ies only want 

what's best for us  and our education , but they do not control our education , the school 

board does. This scares the students at the Turtle Mountain Commur;i ity H igh School 

because the school board has the power to do anything .  People are scared to stand up 

aga inst them ,  for they th ink the board wi l l  do someth ing to the i r  fami l ies. But we are not 

scared , we want a change for our school system ,  and for the enti re state of North 

Dakota. We don't want another school or community to go th rough what our school and 

commun ity is currently go ing through .  We are standing up for what needs to be done. 

We need change in our community, i n  our school , i n  our state, and we need it 

now. I bel ieve that th is is  common sense , that a person who has proven themselves 

untrustworthy by intentional ly breaking the law should not be respons ible for a school 

systems finances .  I am held  accountable for my actions, so why shouldn 't they? Actions 

have consequences. So, i n  voting do pass on Senate b i l l  2230, you wil l be help ing out 

not only my school system but other schools who may one day have a felon runn ing or 

even serving on their school board . 

p )  
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Boozhoo (hello) Chairman Koppelman, Vice Chair Karls, and members of the North 
DakoLa House Judiciary CommiLLee. For Lhe record, my name is Je1yn Marcellais. I am a Junior 
at Turtle Mountain Community High School in Belcourt. 1 am the treasurer of the Student 
Council at my school. Today, I stand before you urging you to support BilJ 2230 and vote do 
pass. 

As you all know, this bill would prevent felons from running for school board positions. 
This bill would not only help members of my community, hut all North Dakotans from having 
to go through what my community is going through currently. 

Members of the Committee, I'm going to give you the following scenario. A student is 
caughL fighLing ano Lher s tudent in school. These s LudenLs are suspended and kicked out of all 
extra curricular activities. If these students are 18, they could possibly face criminal charges 
depending on the severity of the fight. If our students are being held to this standard, shouldn't 
our officials be too? By allowing felons to run and serve on a school board, what are you 
teaching the younger generation? That doing criminal activities is okay and will even help you 
make more money? At the present time, my school board has felons on it, and, although I 
believe that everyone deserves a second chance, running for such a prestigious role like a 
school board position should not be one of them. If these people truly wanted to help our 
school and s LudenLs, Lhere are several olher ways Lo do so. 

On March 5th, 2019, I attended a school board meeting and left the meeting early. I was 
in the meeting for about an hour. As I sat there and watched some of the board members argue 
and go back and forth with one another, I felt embarrassed. I felt embarrassed because I 
realized that when other people outside of our community think of my school, they think of 
these arguments. They don' t  think about our rich history, the bravery of our ancestors, or our 
hardworking students and the bright futures they all have . I felt scared because I realized that 
these were the people who controlled the funding in my school. These are the people who are 
supposed Lo be highly respec ted role models in my communiLy. These are Lhe people who are 
supposed to represent my school when going outside of the community. These are people who 
are elected to guide our school administrators and not interrogate or disrespect them. Also, 
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during this meeting, I noticed that the lack of the word student being used. I don't think one f .. � 
member of the board used this word while I was in attendance. Now, I understand my school 
board has many issues going on right now. But ultimately, they're here for the students. They 
aren't supposed to be in this position for themselves. They're supposed to be here for our 
future doctors , lawyers , teachers, politicians, and leaders. 

As a s LudenL, I feel like my educaLional needs are neglec Led by my school board. I feel 
our teachers are too. Instead of spending money on things like nev.1 microscopes or textbooks 
for the students and teachers to utilize, money is being spent on things like trips to out of town 
athletic events for school board members. 

This board has so much power over my community. Most community members arc 
working in the school system, or knows someone, or is related to someone who works in the 
school system. Many community members are scared of speaking out against the school board 
in fear of what they might or could do. As someone who has several family members working 
in Lhe school and a LLend Lhe school myself, I can honesUy say Lhal I was afraid Lo speak Laday. 
But I feel it is time for change. I feel that the student'i in my school elected me to be on the 
student council to be their voice and if I did not speak today- I would be failing my duties as a 
student council representative. 

This issue truly affects the morale of our students and teachers. This issue is the topic 
of many conversations, and it shouldn't be. We should be talking about how proud we are of 
our school, how proud we are of our people, and how bright our futures are going to be. With 
that being said, I hope that you vote do pass on this bill and not allow felons to run for school 
board posiLions. Thank you. 
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B i l l  2230 

North Dakota State Leg is latu re, B ismarck, North Da kota 

Testimony of Tucker Bercier 

Secretary, Turtle Mountain Community High School Student Council 

Monday, March n, 2019 

Good afternoon Chairman Koppelman, Vice Chair Karls, and members of the North 
Dakota House Judiciary Committee, I come before you today in support of Bill 2230. For 
the record, my name is Tucker Bercier. I am an enrolled student at the Turtle Mountain 

Community High School up in Belcourt and I am the Student Council Secretary . 

2230 has a special meaning to myself and school district. As you may have seen in local 
media outlets, three of our current board members are convicted felons. This bill may 
be, a simple one, but contains a big impact that would align with the morals and values 

tliat,us, North, Dakotans so pride ourselves of. 

Tq begir� according to the North Dakota Century Code 15 . 1-06-06, all school employees 
are required to undergo a criminal hi story record check. This is a responsibility of the 

school board according to the North Dakota School Board Association Handbook. The 
question remains in this, how does a school board have the right to check the criminal 
history of school employees, when they do not so have to themselves'? Simply put, the 

governing body should be held to the same standards as its employees, therefore 

setting a precedent. 

As the state of North Dakota is responsible for distributing most of the funding to the 
schools, they also retain the right to control how funding is handled. This includes to 
ensure that b:Lxpayer dollars do not end up into the wrong hands, such as someone 
who has been previously charged with embezzlement . 
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I am a firm bel iever in knowing the s ignificant d ifference between right and wrong. � 

Those persons will past convictions, created poor situations which put a mark on their 

past. I believe in second chances, but in this capacity. I am not willing to take another 

chance. 

My fellmv North Dakotans, I knmv int.rust in you that tl1e motto, "one sows for the 

benefit of another age ," shall reign true. Please give 2230 a do pass . 
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Hello Chairman Koppelman, Vice Chair Karls ,  and members of the North Dakota 
House Judiciary Committee. My name is Erin Keplin. I am Student Council Senior Class 
Representative and Senior Class Vice President at Turtle Mountain Community High 
School. I come before you today in support of Bill 2230.  

I 'm standing here in front of you today to express some important issues that 
have been happening in my community; some issues that have been disrupting the 
peace; some issues that I'm sure you may have heard of so I don't need to address. The 

• things going on are wrong and unjust, clearly. 

-

Throughout preschool on up, we hear every day that the youth is the future and 
how our students are very sacred to our leaders. It wasn't until now that I began to 
question how much our future leaders mean to our current "leaders." It is very 
saddening to see what these events are doing to our children, teachers , and also our 
administrators. These issues have been weighing heavy on our people. My community 
is built on the ideas of strong, indigenous peoples . What is  even more disheartening is 
that issues relative to ours, affect schools nationwide. 

In order to keep our youth on the right path in and out of the classroom, we 
need more notable role models for our schools and you can help us make this happen. 
Miigwech. Thank you. 
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Vice President, Turtle Mountain Community High School Student Council 

Monday, March n, 2019 

Good Afternoon Chairman Koppelman, Vice Chair Karls , and members of the North 

Dakota House Judiciary Committee. My name is Nevaeh Davis, senior and Student Council Vice 

President of the Turtle Mountain Community High School of Belcourt, North Dakota. I have 

come here today in support of HB #2230 . 

As some of you may or may not be aware of, many communities throughout the state 

have been dealing wiLh the problem LhaL Lhis bill would be combaLLing if passed. Many do no L 

realize how widespread this problem is across our state, and even our nation. This bill would 

set a great example for states who do not have any policies similar to this one in place. 

Many have said that this bill would be unfair or unjust towards these people who have 

made mistakes in their life and that people who have committed felonies deserve a second 

chance. I do indeed believe that felons may deserve a second chance, but I do not believe that 

they should be a given another chance with a position of such high power over a child's 

educaLional environmenL. These children look up Lo Lhese people who hold Lhese posi Lions and 



• 

• 

• 

"Jo 
,s_{J .; MO 

3-JJ-ff 
personally, I do not believe that a felon is a good role model for a child of any age, no matter 0 

Lhe circumsLances. 

Over the past year, our community has developed a certain reputation due to the 

negative aspects that arise from situations involving the school board. Students, staff and 

parents of the school systems are caught in the middle and take majority of the flame. We deal 

with it on a day-to-day basis and essentially, it affects the performance and productivity of our 

schools. This may seem that we, as students of the Turtle Mountain Community High School, 

are directly referring to our current situation, but that does not mean that it couldn't happen 

anywhere else. This may seems like a small issue to some, but to me and my fellow student 

council members, Lhe gravi Ly of Lhe si LuaLion is s Lrongly concerning and we wanL Lo do 

everything we can to bring prosperity and change to communities to this state and across the 

nation 

I would like to thank Chairman Koppelman and the members of the committee for 

listening to my thoughts and I strongly suggest to please recommend a "Do Pass·· on HB #2230. 

Thank you . 

-r .. '?, 
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President, Turtle Mountain Community High School Student Council 

Monday, March 11, 2019 

Good afternoon Chairman Koppelman, Vice Chair Karls, and members of the 
North Dakota House judiciary committee. I am here today in support of Bill 2230. My 
name is Aiyana Jollie-Trottier, I am the student council president and today I am 
speaking on behalf of the students at Turtle Mountain Community High School . I am 
proud to be apart of this school because I know of my peers' academic success, their 
intelligence, and their stamina. I take part in the efforts made by our youth to keep our 

• culture alive. I get to watch and listen to our amazing pep band and see the beautiful 
artwork made by the talented artists we have. I know of our sports teams' hard work, 
and hear the compliments our athletes receive about their respectfulness as they travel 
the state. These are the accomplishments that bring me pride when I think of my school, 
but sadly, these are not often the things I hear in the media and in the mouths of others. 

I hear the negative actions of our school board, the conspiracies of how money is 
being spent, and how they are corrupted by power. These are the thoughts that seem to 
come up when someone hears the words "Turtle Mountain Community High School." 
These are the things that make me ashamed to be associated with this school, and I 
would never want anybody else to feel this kind of embarrassment. I should not have to 
feel this way, and neither should my peers. 

We should not wonder whether the money that is for our education, is actually 
being put towards that. We should not sit in two hour board meetings and hear the 
word student come up three times. We should not feel intimidated by the people who 

• claim to serve us and have our best interests at heart. We want to trust the adults who 
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• are in charge of our education. We need leaders who are positive role models and let p. '2--­
our voices beheard, but this is currently not the situation at my school . 

• 

• 

I say currently to point out that you can change this, you have the power to 
prevent this before it happens to other students in this state. School board members are 
voted inby the people, but in a small town relatives and friends can swing an election. 
By passing this bill, you will prevent untrustworthy adults from running and possibly 
getting in a position of power they most likely do not deserve. You are not taking away 
their second chance, their many other occupations that do not involve having control of 
a school's finances. You will not be preventing them from helping the school, because 
there are many ways they can make valuable contributions without being on the 
board.These are ways they can turn their image around and truly have a positive 
impact on our school. Thank you for your time and attention and please vote this bill as 
"do pass." 
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f l  

Cha i rm a n  Koppe lman  and  members of the House J ud ic ia ry Comm ittee, my name is  Alex is 

Bax ley .  I am the execut ive d i recto r of the North Da kota School  Boa rds Associat ion .  N DSBA rep resents a l l  

o pe rat ing North Da kota school  d i str icts a nd t h e i r  boa rds .  I a m  here today i n  oppos it ion t o  SB  2230 .  

The c it izens  of No rth Dakota have two p rocesses ava i la b le  to them to remove s itt ing schoo l  

boa rd mem bers if they a re d issat isfied with the i r  performance .  The fi rst, a petit ion fo r reca l l  i s  provided 

fo r i n  N DCC 44-08-2 1 .  In o rder  to i n it iate a reca l l  e lection,  a petit ion with a n umber  of s ignatures eq ua l  

to  25  percent of the n u m ber  of  vote rs i n  the  most recent e lect ion m ust be subm itted to the d i str ict' s 

bus iness ma nager .  U pon  cert ificat ion of the s ignatu res, a n  e lect ion must be he ld  between 95 and  105 

days from the d ate of certificat ion .  A number  of commun it ies have used th i s  p rocess in recent yea rs -

R ich l a nd  County, P a rsha l l , Ba rnes County North ,  and  p robab ly most recent ly a nd infamous ly - Twin 

Buttes .  I t ' s  a ve ry a ccessi b le process. I n  fact, the reca l l  petit ion i n  Twi n  Buttes l a st fa l l  req u i red on ly 35  

s ignatu res .  The second  process provides fo r a n  i nvestigat ion by  the atto rney genera l  a nd  remova l by  the 

governor .  Al l  it req u i res to in it iate this process is a petit ion s igned by 20, 15  o r  25  percent of the 

qu a l ified e lecto rs of the d i str ict . We cou ld even say there is a th i rd opt ion - eve ry regu l a r ly sched u led 

e lect ion .  

Wh ich  ma ndates the question :  how fa r do w e  wa nt to g o  i n  p rotect ing vote rs from themse lves? 

We be l ieve th i s  leg is lat ion is a react ion to some very unfo rtunate c i rcumsta nces i n  just a ha ndfu l  of 

com mun it ies .  But  these com mun it ies have the sa me too ls  the others have.  There has  been some 

d iscuss ion a bout  fea r  of reta l i at ion d i scou rag ing some patrons  from using these processes. Whi le I am 

sym pathet ic to that, these p rocesses ca n be a nonymous .  In fact, d u ring the Senate hea r ing on  th is  b i l l  

we hea rd that  afte r coup le  unsuccessfu l attempts to get a petit ion go i ng  i n  the Be lcou rt a rea cit izens 

were i n fo rmed that  the i r  names d id  not need to be pub l ic .  They then were ab le to co l lect more than  

doub l e  the n u m be r  of  s ignatures needed . 
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provis ions  due  to the  state fu nd i ng received by pub l ic schoo ls .  But  c it ies, count ies, a nd  townsh ips  a l l  

rece ive state do l l a rs .  I f  t hese p roh ib it ions a re good for o n e  po l it ica l subd iv is ion,  they shou l d  b e  good fo r 

a l l .  I n  a dd it ion ,  there a re a n umber  of p rovisions  i n  state law that p rotect schoo l d i str ict fu nds .  I 'm not 

go ing  to go t h rough them a l l  with you, but there is a n  attachment to my test imony t it led "Fo l low the 

Money" that descr ibes the p rotect ions and contro l s  i n  p lace.  In s ummary of that document, school 

boa rd mem bers a re u n a b l e  to access o r  spend fu nds  without the pa rt ic ipat ion of the schoo l  bus iness 

ma nager  or a dm i n istrato r .  They ca nnot embezz le  fu nds on the i r  own .  

They' l l  a lso a rgue that boa rd mem bers a re d iffe rent beca use o f  the i r  p roxim ity t o  ch i l d ren ,  but 

the rea l ity i s  that most boa rd mem bers don't come i nto a ny more contact with students - un less they 

a re pa rents - tha n a ny other e lected offic i a l  wou l d .  The work of a boa rd does not ta ke p l a ce d u ring 

schoo l  hou rs o r  i n  the  c l a ssroom .  

F i na l ly, a nd most concern i ng, is t h e  i nc red ib le  l i st o f  offenses i n c l uded i n  t h i s  b i l l  a s  cu rrently 

written .  Let me  l i st the numbe r  of offenses that wou ld  keep a North Da kota n from runn i ng fo r the i r  loca l 

schoo l  boa rd if SB  2230 passes: 

1 .  ANY fe lony convict ion;  

2 .  Cr imes aga inst a ch i l d  a s  defi ned under  12 . 1-32-15,  a lmost a l l  o f  wh ich a re fe lon ies; 

3 .  V io lat ions o f  a domestic protect ion o rder  - a fi rst v io lat ion i s  a c lass  A m isdemeanor; 

su bseq uent v io lat ions a re fe lon ies .  Th is ca n be common ,  espec ia l ly i n  d ivo rce cases; and  

he re i s  where it gets i nterest i ng; 

4. Theft and  re l ated offense under  N DCC 12 . 1-23,  wh ich i nc l udes fe lon ies a nd class A and  B 

m isdemea nors l i ke dup l icat ion of keys, shop l ift i ng, us ing a fa ke I D, a nd  theft of a keg. 

That's r ight, us ing a fa ke I D . I cou ld  make a joke here a bout how many of us wou ld  be rendered i ne l ig ib le  

by fa ke ID a nd theft of a keg a lone, but the fact of the matte r is i t ' s  rea l ly h a rd to fi nd  boa rd mem bers i n  

some commun it ies .  With the passage of  SB  2230  we w i l l  l im it the poo l  even fu rther .  SB  2230 does  not 

p l a ce a ny t ime t h resho ld for convictions to be app l i ca b le .  Mean i ng, that t ime you got ca ught using a 

fa ke I D  to get i n to a ba r i n  co l lege? Forget it .  It doesn't matter  that you' re now a respons ib le  member  of 

society. At 40, 50 or even 60 yea rs o ld, you ' re sti l l  p roh i bited from se rv ing on  you r  schoo l  boa rd . But 

don't  worry - you  can sti l l  se rve i n  you r  state leg i s l a ture ! Th is legis lat ion is a sta rk contrast to the 

messag ing from the Gove rnor's  office a nd other  state leaders surround i ng recove ry and re i nvention .  In  

the eyes of SB  2230 - once a fe lon ,  a lways a fe lon .  

Page I 2 
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I a m  not advocat ing fo r mora l ly questionab le  schoo l  boa rd mem bers .  But I do  be l ieve that' s  a 

cho ice that  s hou l d  be left up  to the e lectors of the d i str ict, a nd  school  boa rd members shou ld  not be 

s ing led o ut from other  e lected offic i a l s .  Cha nging the law fo r one o r  two com m un it ies is not good 

p ract ice, a n d  I be l i eve th i s  b i l l  wi l l  do more da mage than  good . I u rge you to g ive SB 2230 a do not pass, 

and  I wou l d  be h appy to a nswer a ny quest ions .  

Page I 3 
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FOLLOW THE MONEY 

NDCC ensures that school board members would not have access to school funds un less Business Manager or Superintendent/Admin istrators (who 
are background checked and bonded) are in agreement with th is access. NDCC reduces the chances for fraud and m isuse of pub l ic funds. I f there 
is a misuse of funds ,  the Business Manager and/or the Superintendent/Admin istrator wou ld have to be involved as wel l .  p, � 

DCC 1 5. 1 -07-1 2 Negotiable I nstruments- Disbursement of Moneys by Business Manager (checks, bonds, CDs, and cu rrency) states: 

"The Board of a school d istrict may adopt pol icies govern ing the d isbursement of school d istrict moneys by the Business Manager. The pol icies 
adopted under subdivision a may include :  

( 1 ) The authorization ,  creation ,  and approval of negotiable instruments; 
(2) The use of cred it or debit cards ;  
(3) The payment of invoices; 
(4) The use of petty cash ;  
(5 )  The use of electron ic payments ;  and 
(6) The use of facsimile signatures (signature stamps) . 

!The pol icies adopted under subdivision a must include i nternal controls to safeguard school d istrict moneys. If the Board of a school district hasn't 
adopted pol icies to govern the disbu rsement of school d istrict moneys by the business manager, the Business Manager may disburse moneys only 
by issuance of a negotiable instrument upon presentation of a bi l l or invoice , the payment of wh ich has been authorized by the President of the 
School Board , and on ly if there are sufficient moneys available for the d isbursement. Upon issu ing a negotiable instrument, the Business Manager 
shal l make a record of the instrument . " 

NDCC 1 5. 1 -07-21 School District Busi ness Manager Duties states in part that the Business Manager prepares al l negotiable instruments as 
d irected by the Board , keeps a true and accurate financial records, maintains custody of al l  d istrict moneys coming into the business manager's 
hands , pays out d istrict moneys u nder the business manager's control as d irected by the Board , and receives and maintains custody of al l moneys to 
wh ich the D istrict or the Board is entitled . NDCC 1 5. 1 -07-24 states that the Business Manager is responsible for the safekeeping of al l school d istrict 
funds and shal l  keep an account of the d istrict's receipts , expend itures, and itemized accounts for each class of receipts and expenditures. 

I n ternal contro ls should mandated that al l staff with d irect access to d istrict funds have had background checks and are bonded th rough the ND 
State Bonding Fund which covers pub l ic employees for theft of money and property by them.  I n ternal controls should spel l out how cash ,  checks, 
ACH ,  and credit card transactions are hand led . This includes receipts , deposits , purchases by the D istrict, payrol l  time card and benefits entries, 
sports/activity ticket and concession sales, and accounting entries/practices .  District pol icies should provide for procedures for confl icts of interest 

board members and d istrict employees . 

chool D istrict internal controls ensure a min imal number of bonded , background checked staff have access to funds in lock boxes or the safe . 
Genera l ly this is the Business Manager, the Superintendent, an office secretary or principal that may receipt incoming cash or checks. The safe 
combination should be in the hands of the Superintendent, office secretary, and possib ly the principa l .  The internal controls should include steps 
ensuring that receipts are immediately issued for all incoming funds and signed for by the person submitting the funds .  The person submitting funds 
should receive a copy of the signed receipt. The incoming funds are immediately placed in a lock box and/or safe until the dai ly deposit is processed 
by the Business Manager . The Business Manager compares the daily receipts to the cash/checks in the lock box and/or safe prior to the daily 
deposit . 

I f a cash box is prepared for sports events, school activities, or the concession stand ,  two people should count and in itial for the funds in the cash 
box before and after the event and sign a form testifying that they agree with the tal ly .  Two people should always be sel l ing event tickets and 
concessions .  The Business Manager should never be sel l ing tickets , or be around the cash box at these kinds of events. If more funds are needed 
from the safe du ring events, the Superintendent and one other bonded staff member should go to the safe ,  note the additional funds on the tal ly 
sheet, and lock the safe before putting the cash in the cash box. The goal is to never have a cash box attended by on ly one person and reduce the 
opportun ity for fraud .  

Al l d istrict checks must be  board approved and contain two signatu res . Ideal ly ,  o ne  o f  those signatures should be  the manual signatu re o f  the 
Business Manager. The other signature is the board authorized ind ividual (general ly the Board President for the General Fund, Special Reserve 
Fund ,  Bu ild ing Fund ,  and Sin king and Interest Fund) .  NDCC 21 -03.1 -03 requ ires at least one signatu re of an authorized officer or other person 
requ ired or permitted to be placed on a certificated reg istered pub l ic ob l igation must be a manual s ignatu re .  The other could be a facsimile signatu re 
(signatu re stamp) .  I n ternal controls should ensure that the Business Manager shou ld never have the facsimile signatu re stamp in their possession .  

The Business Manager i s  a l so charged in  law with preparing and submitting financial reports to  the School Board and record ing the l ist of  checks 
approved by the board for payment in the official board minutes. I f the voters have approved the pub l ication of the School Board Minutes, the l ist of 
approved checks are also publ ished . 

d on this, u n less a board member had physical access to an un l ocked cash box or safe , or if the board member or members were in cahoots 
the Business Manager, Superintendent, or Admin istrator, it wou ld  be impossible for them to steal money from the District. 
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RE: 2230 Bil l - Prohibition of felons on school boards. Introduced by Senator Pool man & 

Marcellais and Representatives Monson, Roers Jones 
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My name is Craig Lunday and a member of the Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa and 

reside in Rolette County, ND and am requesting your support on Senator Poolman's bill that will 

disallow felons from attaining membership on a school board. I do realize that some felons will 

make better choices after convicted of their felony. But to sit on a school board that gives them 

access and the authority to the hiring and firing, access to the school checkbook, access to 

creating jobs not needed, access to giving contracts such as teaching, management, 

maintenance, construction, drug testing and other contracts to friends and family, that is not 

fair to our community and to our school children and faculty. 

Our Belcourt School District #7 board consists of 7 members and we have 3 of them who 

are convicted felons. The charges affiliated with those who have been on or currently sit on our 

school board are for embezzlement, violence and drugs. 

Ex Tribal Councilman and Current BSD #7 school board member, Douglas Delorme first 

sat in the penitentiary for being convicted of embezzlement from the tribe, witness tampering 

and subornation of perjury in 2003 and his 2nd time he was incarcerated in the penitentiary was 

in 2007 for a violent crime. It was an assault charge that resulted in serious bodily injury of the 

personnel director of the TMBCI 

Another school board member, Jeremy Laducer is currently awaiting trial for an assault 

charge that took place in September 2018 and was recently charged for terrorizing and another 

assault charge that took place in a Mandan hotel at the end of 2018. He was also recently in the 

news for meth ingestion. I f  he gets convicted of those charges, our school board will have 4 

felons. Nothing good could come from that. What kind of message and example is this for 

children in all schools throughout North Dakota? 

And to my knowledge, other current school board members that are convicted felons for 

charges of embezzlement are Bruce Morin and Teri Lafountain. 

I did give testimony when this bill was brought forward to the Senators. At the time there were 

numerous people in support of the bill and one opposition. I did listen to the reason the person 

opposed it. Their reason was "to not hold a person who decides to use a fake I D  when they 

were younger to the same standards as the felons that commit more serious crimes, basically" 

They said that would take that persons chance at running for school board in the future. I did 

investigate this and found out that the i st offense of using a fake I D  is a misdemeanor. The 2nd 

time is still a misdemeanor. However, if a person commits the same crime of using a fake I D  a 

3rd time ... lt will then be a felony. If a person doesn't learn to follow the rules and laws that are 

created to make our communities safer and happen to get convicted 3X for the same offense? 

In my opinion, their chances of recidivism would be astronomical. 
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National Statistics on recidivism of felons 

• With in th ree yea rs of release ,  a bout two-th i rd s  (67 .8  percent) of released pri soners 

were rea rrested . 

• With in five yea rs of release, a bout th ree-q ua rte rs ( 76 . 6  percent) of released pri soners 

were rea rrested . 

• Of those pr isoners who were rea r rested, more than h alf ( 56 .  7 percent) were a r rested by 

the end of the  first yea r . 

• P roperty offende rs ( b u rgla ry,th eft,vandali sm)were the most l i kely to be  rear rested ,  with 

82 . 1 pe rcent of released property offende rs arrested fo r a new cr ime compa red with 

76 .9  pe rcent of d rug offende rs, 7 3 . 6  percent of publi c o rde r  offende rs and 71 . 3  percent 

of v iolent offende rs .  

Please find it in you r  h e a rts to  ban  together  and pass this act that was  b rought fo rth by  

Senator Poolman, Senato r Ma rcella is and representatives Monson and Roe rs Jones to  prohibit 

felons from sitting on any school boa rd .  I can't thank them enough fo r int roducing this bill 

I f  passed and if it is possible, can you somehow expedite the process to implement ASAP.  

Again, Thank you 

Sincerely, 

Craig Lunday 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2230 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact a new section to chapter 15.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
public school board membership in a school district located on tribal land. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 15.1-09 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

School board membership - Prohibition. 

If a tribal government has prescribed by tribal law or resolution qualifications for 
eligibility for candidates for public office which are more restrictive than the laws of this 
state, the qualifications of candidates for eligibility for membership of a public school 
board of a school district located on tribal land may not be less restrictive than the 
qualifications for eligibility prescribed by tribal law or resolution for public office. For 
purposes of this section, "tribal land" means that portion of the land within the exterior 
boundaries of an Indian reservation which is located in the state." 

Renumber accordingly 
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